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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the financial report of IAG New Zealand Limited (Company) and the consolidated
financial report of IAG New Zealand Limited and its subsidiaries (Consolidated entity) for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and
the auditor's report thereon.

DIRECTORS
The Company's Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the financial year are as follows:

H.A. Fletcher - Chairman, M.M. Devine, N.B.Hawkins, J.S. Johnson, D.A. McKay, R.).Wagstaffe and M.J.Wilkins.

On 13 July 2015, the IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Beard of Directors resolved to appoint Mr Simon Christopher Allen as a Director of I1AG
New Zealand Limited. Mr Allen’s appointment is subject to the successful completion of the Company's relevant fit and proper process
and notification to the RBNZ. Mr Allen’s appointment will take effect on a date to be determined by the Chair, the Company Secretary
and Mr Allen following notification to the RBNZ.

Directors were in office for the entire period unless otherwise stated.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal continuing activity of the Consolidated entity during the year was the underwriting of general insurance through IAG New
Zealand Limited (Company) and related corporate services and investing activities.

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

30 June 2015
$000
Loss Before Income Tax (830,637)
Income Tax Credit 238,206
Loss After Income Tax (592,431)
Other Comprehensive Expense (96)
Retained earnings as at 30 June 2014 (550,403)
Dividends paid (11,600)
Retained earnings as at 30 June 2015 (1,154,530)
The state of the Consolidated entity's affairs as at 30 June 2015 was:
Equity 1,649,014
Represented by:
Assets 5,623,089
Liabilities (3.874,075)
1,649,014
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The net result of the Consolidated entity after applicable income tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 was a loss of $592.4
million. (2014 - profit of $18.9 million).

DIVIDENDS
Dividends of $11.6 million were paid during the year (2014 - $19.5 million).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

The Company continues to be impacted by the Canterbury earthquakes that accurred in 2011, as well as the aftershocks experienced
in 2012 and to a lesser extent in 2013. A revision to the ultimate total cost to the Company of the Canterbury earthquakes has
contributed $1,153.5 million to the reperted net claims expense for the year (2014 - $223.9 million). Excluding the impact of these
events the underwriting profit for the year is $194.5 million (2014 - $149.2 million). The Company's reinsurance arrangements have
significantly mitigated the gross costs attributable to the earthquakes. At the Insurance Australia Group Limited (Group) level the
reinsurance arrangements are even more extensive and substantially immunise the Group against the cost of these significant natural
peril events. The Company continues to benefit from the financial strength of the broader Group. This is evident from the $850 million
recapitalisation in December 2014 and a further $200 million of recapitalisation in April 2015 which underpins the Group's support for
the New Zealand operations and recognises the underlying value that the New Zealand operations provide to the Group as a whole.

With effect from 1 July 2015 the-Company has entered into a whole of account 20% quota share agreement with the Group's captive
reinsurer. The captive will receive 20% of the Company's Gross Written Premium and will pay 20% of all claims. The Captive will also
reimburse the Company for its share of operating costs and pay a percentage based fee of the premium ceded.



EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item, transaction, or event
of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the
Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

DIRECTORS' USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION
During the reperting period the Board received no notices from Directors of the Company requesting to use Company information
received in their capacity as Directors, which would not otherwise have been available to them.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION, INTERESTS AND EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION
The Company, with its shareholder's approval, has applied the exemption available under section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993 in
not disclosing the information required under section 211(1) paragraphs (a) and () to (j) of the Companies Act 1993.

AUDITOR
It is proposed that the auditor, KPMG, continue in office in accordance with section 207T of the Companies Act 1993.

Signed at Auckland this 10th day of August 2015 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholder for the performance, operations and affairs of the Company. The role of the Board is to
govern IAG NZ by ensuring that there is an effective governance framework in place to promote and protect IAG NZ's interests for the
benefit of stakeholders, including compliance with New Zealand law and regulations. The Directors represent and serve the interests of
the shareholder and collectively oversee and appraise the strategies, policies and performance of the Company.

The Board is responsible for oversight, including:
B driving the strategic direction of the Company and approving corporate strategies;

u  approving significant corporate initiatives including major acquisitions and divestments, projects, and capital management
transactions;

approving IAG NZ's risk management programme, including risk appetite and tolerance;

evaluating Board processes and performance of the Board as a whole, as well as contributions by individual Directors;
monitoring management's performance and the exercise of the Board's delegated authority;

evaluating regularly and, if necessary, replacing the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ);

reviewing CEQ, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and senior management succession planning; and

setting standards for and ensuring that proper governance practices (including appropriate standards of ethical behaviour,
corporate governance, and social and environmental responsibility) are adhered to at all times.

E B B 5B B &

The Board currently comprises four independent Non-Executive Directors, and three Executive Directors. The Board considers its size
and composition annually. The Board's policy is to ensure that the Board comprises Directors who collectively have the relevant
experience, knowledge, diversity and skills required taking into account the Company's current size, market position, complexity and
strategic focus.

The Directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

H. A. FLETCHER - Chair / Independent Non-Executive Director

BSc/BCom, MCom (Hons), MBA

Mr Hugh Fletcher was appointed Chair of IAG New Zealand Limited in July 2003 and as a Director of Insurance Australia Group Limited
in September 2007. He is a member of the IAG NZ Audit Committee, IAG NZ Risk Committee and Chair of the IAG NZ Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Mr Fletcher was formerly Chairman (and Independent Director since December 1998) of New Zealand
Insurance Limited and CGNU Australia.

Mr Fletcher is a Non-Executive Director of AMI Insurance Limited, Fletcher Brothers Limited, Insurance Australia Group Limited, IAG
Finance (New Zealand) Limited, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited, Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited, Rubicon Limited and Vector
Limited. Mr Fletcher is a Trustee of The University of Auckland Foundation, The Dilworth Trust and the New Zealand Portrait Gallery
Trust. Mr Fletcher was formerly Chief Executive Officer of Fletcher Challenge Limited, a New Zealand headquartered corporation with
assets in the global building, energy, forestry and paper industries. He retired from an executive position in December 1997 after 28
years as an Executive, 11 of which he served as Chief Executive.

Mr Fletcher is a former Deputy Chairman of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, former member of the Asia Pacific Advisory Committee
of the New York Stock Exchange, former Non-Executive Director of Fletcher Building Limited, and has been involved as an Executive
and Non-Executive Director in many countries in Asia, including China, India, Singapore, Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand.

J. S. JOHNSON - Executive Director

CEO, New Zealand

BAppSc (OT), GradDip Safety Science, EMBA, FAICD

Ms Jacki Johnson was appointed Chief Executive Officer of IAG's New Zealand business in November 2010. She is also a Director of
AMI Insurance Limited, Community First Credit Union, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited, Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited, Runacres
and Associates Limited and Runacres Premium Funding Limited. Ms Johnson is a member of the Community First Corporate
Governance Committee and a board member of the Insurance Council of New Zealand.

Since joining IAG in 2001, Ms Johnson has held several senior positions in both direct and intermediated insurance, including as Chief
Executive Officer of IAG's business partnerships division, now part of CGU; and managing IAG's risk management and safety services,
New South Wales and Victoria workers' compensation fee based businesses, affinity groups, motor dealers and motor manufacturers
insurance distribution businesses. She has also led organisational effectiveness and group strategy functions, and managed the
integration of IAG and CGU's workers' compensation business.

Ms Johnson has more than 20 years' industry experience including roles with Allianz Insurance, HIH Insurance and IRS Total Injury
Management.

Ms Johnson is a former Director of the New South Wales WorkCover Authority and the Personal Injury Education Foundation



M. J. WILKINS - Executive Director

Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

BCom, MIBA, FCA, FAICD

Mr Mike Wilkins was appointed Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Insurance Australia Group Limited in May 2008 and a
Director of IAG New Zealand Limited in February 2008. He has more than 30 years experience in the insurance and financial services
sector and is a member of the Australian Government's Financial Sector Advisory Council.

Mr Wilkins was formerly the Managing Director of Promina Group Limited {frem 1999 to 2007), and Managing Director of Tyndall
Australia Limited (from 1994 to. 1999). He is a former Director and President of the Insurance Council of Australia and a former
Director of the Investment and Financial Services Association (now the Financial Services Council).

In May 2014, Mr Wilkins was appointed as a Director of The Geneva Association, the leading international insurance think tank for
strategically important insurance and risk management issuss. He is also a Director of AMI Insurance Limited, IAG Finance (New
Zealand) Limited, 1AG (NZ) Holdings Limited, Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Maple-Brown
Abbott Limited.

N. B. HAWKINS - Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer, Australia

BCom, CA

Mr Nick Hawkins was appointed 1AG's Chief Financial Officer in July 2008. Since joining the company in 2001, he has held senior
positions in the Group, most recently as Chief Executive Officer of IAG's New Zealand business.

Mr Hawkins has also had several senior roles in the company including Head of Asset Management & Group Strategy, responsible for
$14 billion in funds under management and, prior to that, as General Manager, Group Finance.

Before joining 1AG, Mr Hawkins was a partner with the international accounting firm KPMG, where he specialised in working with
financial services clients.

Mr Hawkins is a Director of AMI Insurance Limited, IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited and Lumley General
Insurance (N.Z.} Limited.

M. M. DEVINE - Independent Non-Executive Director
ONZM, BCom, MIBA
Ms Mary Devine was appointed as a Director on 27 April 2012 and is Chair of the IAG NZ Risk Commitiee.

Ms Devine is a former Managing Director of department store J.Ballantyne & Co, a former Chief Executive of Australasia multichannel
retailer Ezibuy. She has particular experience in corporate strategy, brand marketing and multi-channel retailing. Ms Devine was
awarded an ONZM for services to business.

Ms Devine is currently a Director of AMI Insurance Limited, Briscoe Group Limited, Crossing CBD Limited, Devine Consultancy (2014)
Limited, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited, Lumley General Insurance {N.Z.) Limited, Meridian Energy Limited, Meridian LTI Trustee Limited and
Top Retail Limited. Ms Devine is also a Director of the Advisory Board for the transition of CERA.

D. A. McKAY - Independent Non-Executive Director
ONZM, BA, AMP (Harvard)
Mr Doug McKay was appeinted as a Director on 10 February 2014.

Mr McKay's previous roles include executive positions with Lion Nathan Limited, Carter Holt Harvey Limited, Goodman Fielder Pty
Limited, Sealord Group Limited, Independent Liquor (NZ) Limited and Procter and Gamble.

Mr McKay is a Director of AMI Insurance Limited, Bank of New Zealand Limited, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand {CA
ANZ), Genesis Energy Limited, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited, Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited, Ryman Healthcare Limited, Tourism
Transport Limited and Wymac Consulting Limited. Mr McKay is Chair of the Eden Park Trust Board, is a member of the Institute of
Directors in NZand is a member of the NZICA Regulatory Board. Mr McKay was awarded an ONZM for services to business and local
government.

On 23 June 2015, it was announced that Mr. McKay was to be appointed Chair of Bank of New Zealand, effective 1 August 2015. Mr.
McKay will also join the Board of National Australian Bank in February 2018, subject to regulatory approval.

Mr McKay was the inaugural Chief Executive of Auckland Council from May 2010 to December 2013.

R.). WAGSTAFFE - Independent Non-Executive Director
AMP (Mt Eliza)
Mr Robert Wagstaffe was appointed as a Director on 1 October 2004.

Mr Wagstaffe has more than 48 years experience in the insurance industry, more recently as CGU Group Executive Intermediary
Business at IAG Limited.

Mr Wagstaffe began his career with Commercial Union Group in 1965 and has held a wide range of roles in sales, underwriting and
management and was a Director of CGU Insurance and retail subsidiaries between 1995 and 2004,

Mr Wagstaffe is a Director of AMI Insurance Limited, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited and Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited. Mr
Wagstaffe was previously the Chairman of NTI NZ Limited, a joint venture business with Suncorp specialising in heavy transport
insurance and was a former Chairman of Mutual Community General Insurance Company, & joint venture licensed domestic insurer
with Bupa Australia.
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S.C. ALLEN - Independent Non-Executive Director designate

BSc, BCom, INSEAD AMP (Fontainbleau), MBA Programme Leadership Course (Mt Eliza)

On 13 July 2015, the IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Board of Directors resolved to appoint Mr Simon Christopher Allen as a Director of IAG
New Zealand Limited. Mr Allen's appointment is subject to the successful completion of the Company's relevant fit and proper process
and notification to the RBNZ. Mr Allen’s appointment will take effect on a date to be determined by the Chair, the Company Secretary
and Mr Allen following notification to the RBNZ.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES

In April 2014 the Audit, Risk Management and Compliance Committee (ARMCCO) was replaced by the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The members of the Audit Committee are currently Hugh Fletcher, Mary Devine, Doug McKay and Robert Wagstaffe.

The main role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities by monitoring:
m  the integrity of external and internal financial reporting, including compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and other
requirements in relation to external financial reporting;

m  that Directors and management are provided with high quality financial and non-financial information that reflects a true and fair
view of the Company performance and can be relied on by them to make informed judgements;

tax and financial risks; and
that the independence of the external auditor, the internal auditor, and the Appointed Actuary is safeguarded.

RISK COMMITTEE
The members of the Risk Committee are currently Hugh Fletcher, Mary Devine, Doug McKay and Robert Wagstaffe.

The main role of the Risk Committee is to assist the Board with discharging its responsibility to exercise due care, skill and diligence

regarding:

m  effective management of material risks and oversight of risk management and control systems for adequacy and effective
function;

@ monitoring compliance with the Company’s Risk Management Programme, Group Risk Management Strategy and Group
Reinsurance Management Strategy;

m  effective operation and management of compliance systems and to ensure compliance with the requirements of applicable laws,
regulations, industry codes and organisational policies and standards;

oversight of the Company's risk management and governance frameworks; and
safeguarding the independence of the Appointed Actuary.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are currently Hugh Fletcher, Mary Devine, Doug McKay and Robert
Wagstaffe.

The key roles of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are to:
m  review and determine Director and Executive remuneration; and

m  review Board capabilities, composition and succession planning.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

ASSET AND LIABILITY COMN_IITI'EE (ALCO) ;
The members of the ALCO are currently Jacki Johnson, Alistair Smith, Christian Barrington and Karl Armstrong.

The purpose of the ALCO is to allow senior management of the Company to provide input into the formulation of recommendations for
the Board concerning issues related to:

m  reinsurance including endorsement of major reinsurance renewal strategies;

capital management including processes, risk appetite, economic capital targets and minimum capital requirements as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand;

®m  assetand liability management including overseeing market risk and making recommendations to the Board regarding balance
sheet and capital mix; and

m  risk management.

EXECUTIVE RISK COMMITTEE (ERC)
The members of the ERC are currently Jacki Johnson, Dan Coman, Allan Dornan, Karl Armstrong, Craig Olsen, Dean MacGregor, Alistair
Smith, Travis Atkinson and Martin Hunter.

The ERC oversees the operation and governance of the Reserving Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee and the Insurance
Risk Committee and directly oversees operational and strategic risk.



The role of the ERC is to promote a proactive risk management culture; to ensure adequate awareness and debate; and provide
adeguate management oversight of all significant risks in relation to the following risk areas:

Strategic Risk;
Insurance Risk;
Reinsurance Risk;
Financial Risk; and
Operational Risk.

INSURANCE RISK COMMITTEE
The members of the Insurance Risk Committee are currently Karl Armstrong, Craig Olsen, Alistair Smith, Dean MacGregor, Travis
Atkinson, Darren Maher, Allan Dornan, Christian Barrington and other senior management members of the Company.

The role of the Insurance Risk Committee is to implement and oversee compliance with the NZ Business Division Licence (the IAG
Group-granted licence governing pricing, underwriting and claims).

PROJECT PORTFOLIO GOVERNANCE BOARD (PPGB)
The PPGB is made up of Alistair Smith, Dan Coman, Allan Dornan, Karl Armstrong, Martin Hunter, Travis Atkinson, Craig Olsen, Dean
MacGregor and other senior management members of the Company.

The PPGB provides executive review and oversight of IAG's portfolio of projects.

RESERVING COMMITTEE
The members of the Reserving Committee are currently Alistair Smith, Craig Olsen, Karl Armstrong, Travis Atkinson, Dean MacGregor
Allan Dornan, Christian Barrington and Heathcliff Neels.

The role of the Reserving Committee is to review the adequacy of the technical reserves of the insurance business including reviewing
the recommendation of the Actuarial team.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board has delegated responsibility for the overall management and profit performance of the Company, including all day-tc-day
operations and administration, to the CEO, who is responsible for:
m the efficient and effective operation of the Company;

fostering a culture of performance, integrity, respect and a considered sense of urgency;

ensuring the ongoing development, implementation and monitoring of IAG's risk management and internal controls framework;
ensuring the Board is provided with accurate and clear information in a timely manner to promote effective decision making; and
ensuring all material matters affecting the Company are brought to the Board's attention.

The CEQ, together with the Executive management team, manages the Company in accordance with the policies, budget, corporate
plan and strategies approved by the Board, and has the power to manage the Company, subject to the limits set out in the Charter of
CEO Delegated Authority Limits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCESSES

The Company is a member of Insurance Australia Group Limited (“IAG Group”) and is committed to operate and comply with all the IAG
Group operating policies and procedures, except where they are inconsistent with the requirements of New Zealand law or regulations
or where the Board considers they are not in the best interests of the Company. Where further refinement of IAG Group policies and
procedures is required to better reflect the New Zealand regulatory, legislative or operating environment, the Company has specific
policies in place to address the New Zealand situation.

The Company's corporate governance policies, practices and processes are contained in the Company’s Risk Management Programme
which has been approved by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
Premium revenue 4 1,558,714 1,560,772 1,558,714 1,560,772
Qutwards reinsurance premium expense (342,342) (341,757) (342,342) (341,757)
Net premium revenue (i) 1,216,372 1,219,015 1,216,372 1,219,015
Claims expense 8 {1,987,836) (1,679,165) (1,987,836) (1,679,165)
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 4 226,485 778,443 226,485 778443
Net claims expense (i) 8 (1,761,351) (900,722) (1,761,351) (900,722)
Acquisition costs 5 (287,747) (289,276) (287,747) (289,276)
Other underwriting expenses 5 (126,263) (103,692) (126,263) (103,692)
Underwriting expenses  (iii) (414,010) (392,968) (414.010) (392,968)
Underwriting loss (i} + (ii) + (iii) (958,989) {74,675) (958,989) (74,675)
Investment income on assets backing insurance liabilities 4 70,444 58,792 70,444 58,792
Investment expenses on assets backing insurance liabilities {4,010) (3,779) (4,01.0) (3,779)
Insurance loss (892,555) (19,662) (892,555) (19,662)
Investment income on shareholder's funds 4 59,001 47,207 59,222 47,367
Fee and other income 4 - - 9,053 6,819
Fee based, corporate and other expenses 5] (760) (2,087) {6,357) (6,581}
(Loss)/profit before income tax (834,314) 25,458 (830,637) 27,943
Income tax credit/(expense) 7 239,499 (8,211) 238,206 (9.032)
Profit/(loss) for the year (594.815) 17,247 (592,431) 18,911
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND (EXPENSE), NET OF TAX
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (96) 98 (96) 98
Other comprehensive income and (expense), net of tax (96) 98 {96) 98
Total comprehensive income and (expense) for the year, net of tax (594,911) 17,345 _ (592,527) ___ 19.009

The above statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
ASSETS
Cash held for operational purposes 24 36,020 42,523 45,097 50,018
Investments ) 2,170,549 2,204,472 2,472,277 2,205,871
Premium receivable 13 431,410 464,039 434,410 464,039
Trade and other receivables 13 91,293 57,792 103,113 69,364
Receivables from related bodies corporate 22 573,366 5,953 572,617 5,191
Current tax assets 27 27 27 27
Deferred outwards reinsurance expense 10 394,206 303,726 394,206 303,726
Deferred acquisition costs 10 147,729 154,957 147,729 154,957
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 9 880,414 1,134,234 880,114 1,134,234
Deferred tax assets 7 509,803 270,959 508,288 269,804
Plant and equipment 35,924 34,232 36,576 35,025
Intangible assets 14 13,482 14,155 15,648 16,756
Investment in subsidiaries 16 10,679 10,679 - -
Goodwill 15 204,813 204,813 212,416 212,361
Other assets 3,712 4,622 3,571 4,476
Total assets 5,503,127 4,907,183 5,523,089 4,925,849
LIABILITIES .
Trade and other payables 17 144,011 148,087 156,451 164,600
Reinsurance premium payable 339,006 286,946 339,006 286,946
Payables to related bodies corporate 22 85,741 3,671 85,741 3,671
Unearned premium liability 11 692,028 709,754 692,028 709,754
Employee benefits provision 18 37,290 31,273 37,622 31,503
Qutstanding claims liability 8 2,515,133 2,514,469 2,515,133 2,514,469
Other liabilities 48,192 13,200 48,194 13,200
Total liahilities 3,858,401 3,707,400 3,874,075 3,724,143
Net assets 1,644,726 1,199,783 1,649,014 1,201,706
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 23 2,799,830 1,749,830 2,799,830 1,749,830
Equity reserve 23 3,764 2,310 3,714 2,279
Retained earnings (1.158,868) (652,357) (4,154,530) (550,403)
Total equity 1,644,726 1,199,783 1649014 1,201,706

Signed in Auckland this 10th day of August 2015 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.




IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

SHARE EQUITY RETAINED

CONSOLIDATED CAPITAL RESERVE EARNINGS TOTAL EQUITY
$000 $000 $000 $000

2015
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,749,830 2,279 (550,403) 1,201,706
Profit/(loss) for the year - - (592,431) (592,431)
Other comprehensive expense that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss - (96) (96)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - (592,527) (592,527)
Shares issued 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
Share based payment - 1,435 - 1,435
Dividends determined and paid - - (11.,600) (11.600)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,799,830 3.714 (1,154,530) 1.649.014
2014 -
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,649,830 2,513 (549,912) 1,102,431
Profit/(loss) for the year - 18,911 18,911
Other comprehensive income and (expense) - 98 98
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - 19,009 19,009
Shares issued 100,000 - - 100,000
Share based payment - (234) - (234)
Dividends determined and paid - - (19,500) {19,500)
Bzlance at the end of the financial year 1749830 2,279 (550,403) 1,201,708

SHARE EQUITY RETAINED
PARENT CAPITAL RESERVE EARNINGS TOTAL EQUITY

$000 $000 $000 $000

2015
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,749,830 2,310 (552,357) 1,199,783
Profit/(loss) for the year - - (594,815) (594,815)
Other comprehensive income and (expense) - - - =
Other comprehensive expense that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss = - (96) (96)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - (594,911) (594,911)
Shares issued 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
Share based payment - 1,454 - 1,454
Dividends determined and paid - - (11.600) (11.,600)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2.799.830 3.764 __(1,158,868) _ 1,644,726
2014
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,649,830 2,513 (550,202) 1,102,141
Profit/(loss) for the year - - 17,247 17,247
Other comprehensive income and {expense) = 98 a8
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - 17,345 17,345
Shares issued 100,000 - - 100,000
Share based payment - (203) - {203)
Dividends determined and paid e (19,500) (19,500)
Balance at the end of the financial year —1.749.830 2,310 (552,357) 1,199,783
The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premium received 1,573,618 1,567,598 1,573,618 1,567,598
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 445,971 844,139 445,971 844,139
Claims costs paid (1,987,158) (1,860,280) (1,987,158) (1,860,280)
Outwards reinsurance premium expense paid (346,366) (357,693) (346,366) (357,693)
Dividends received 197 734 197 734
Interest received 88,169 82,878 88,411 83,149
Income taxes refunded 656 796 - 796
Income taxes paid - - (331) (851)
Other cperating receipts - - 8,796 3,678
Other operating payments (404,310) (371,972) (408,884) (372,394)
Net cash flows from operating activities 24 (629,223) (93,800) (625,746) (91,124)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investments and plant and equipment 3,928,023 2,994,794 3,928,023 2,994,794
Qutlays for investments and plant and equipment (3,808,468) (3,17/6,887) (3,810,351) (3,179,066)
Net cash flows from investing activities 119,555 (182,093} 117,672 (184,272)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (11,600) (19,500) (11,600) (19,500)
Proceeds from issue of shares 1,050,000 100,000 1,050,000 100,000
Loans advanced to related bodies corporate (542,205) (750) (542,218) -
Net cash flows from financing activities 496,195 79,750 496,182 80,500
Net movement in cash held (13,474) (196,143) (11,892) (194,896)
Effects of exchange rate changes on balances of cash held in
foreign currencies 2,059 (14,974) 2,059 (14,974)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 118,728 329,845 126,223 336,093
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 24 107.313 118,728 116,390 126,223
The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IAG New Zealand Limited (Company) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. Its registered office
and principal place of busingss is 1 Fanshawe Street, Auckland, New Zealand. This financial report is for the reporting year ended 30
June 2015 and includes separate financial statements for the Company as an individual entity and consolidated financial statements
for the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as Consolidated entity).

The Company is wholly owned by IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited. The ultimate parent entity is Insurance Australia Group Limited (IAG), an
entity incorporated in Australia. As part of the IAG Group (Group), the Company complies with a variety of policies and procedures
developed by IAG for application by all entities in the Group where applicable.

With the implementation of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 all general insurance entities undertaking insurance
business in New Zealand are required to be licensed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ). The Company has been granted a
full licence. As a result of being a licensed insurer, the Company is deemed to be a FMC reporting entity under the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA).

A. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ
GAAP), and complies with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, and interpretations as appropriate to profit-oriented entities. The Company is a reporting entity for the
purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the FMCA and its financial statements comply with these Acts.

The financial statements also comply, where relevant, with the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 and associated
Regulations.

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are set out below. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of this financial report have been applied consistently by all entities in the Consolidated entity and are the
same as those applied for the previous reporting year unless ctherwise noted. The financial statements have been prepared on the
basis of historical cost principles, as modified by certain exceptions noted in the financial report, with the principal exceptions being
the measurement of all investments and derivatives at fair value and the measurement of the outstanding claims liability and related
reinsurance and other recoveries at present value.

The presentation currency used for the preparation of this financial report is New Zealand dollars.
The balance sheet is prepared using the liquidity format in which the assets and liabilities are presented broadly in order of liquidity.

Certain items have been reclassified from the Parent and Consolidated entity's prior year financial report to conform to the current
period's presentation.

I. New Zealand accounting standards issued hut not yet effective
As at the date of this financial report, there have been a number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations for
which the mandatory application dates fall after the end of this current reporting year.

None of these standards have been early adopted and applied in the current reporting period or are expected to have a significant
effect on the financial statements of the Consolidated entity, except for NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2018)
which could change the classification and measurement of financial assets. The Consolidated entity does not plan to adopt this
standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined. This standard will be adopted in the year commencing 1 July
2018.

Il. Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies which have resulted in a material financial impact during the current financial

reporting period.

The External Reporting Board of New Zealand (XRB) has released a new accounting standards framework which establishes the
financial reporting standards to be applied to entities with statutory financial reporting obligations. Under the new XRB framework the
Consolidated Entity has applied NZ IFRS as applicable for Tier 1 for-profit entities.

lll. Changes to comparatives

Unearned exchange commission has been reclassified from trade and other payables to other liabilities from the Consolidated entity's
prior year financial report to conform to the current year's presentation.

12 |AG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED
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C. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

Consolidation is the inclusion of the assets and liabilities of the Parent and all subsidiaries as at the reporting date and the results of
the Parent and all subsidiaries for the year then ended as if they had operated as a single entity. The balances and effects of
intragroup transactions are eliminated from the consolidation. Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Parent. An investor
controls an investee if and only if the investor has power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Where an entity
either began or ceased to be controlled during a financial reporting period, the results are included only from the date control
commenced or up to the date control ceased.

The financial information of all subsidiaries are prepared for consolidation for the same reporting period as the Parent, using
consistent accounting policies.

In the Company's financial statements investments in subsidiaries are recognised at cost, unless there has been an impairment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELATED TO GENERAL INSURANCE CONTRACTS

All of the general insurance products and reinsurance products en offer, or utilised, meet the definition of an insurance contract (a
contract under which one party, the insurer, accepts significant insurance risk from another party, the policyholder, by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event, the insured event, adversely affects the policyholder) and none of
the contracts contain embedded derivatives or are required to be unbundled. Insurance contracts that meet the definition of a
financial guarantee contract are accounted for as insurance contracts. This means that all of the general insurance products are
accounted for in the same manner.

D. PREMIUM REVENUE

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) and excludes fire service and earthquake levies
collected on behalf of statutory bodies. Premium is recognised as earned from the date of attachment of risk (generally the date a
contract is agreed to but may be earlier if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists) over the period of the related insurance
contracts in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk expected under the contracts. The pattern of the risks underwritten is
generally matched by the passing of time. The unearned portion of premium is recognised as an unearned premium liability on the
balance sheet.

Premium receivable is recognised as the amount due and is normally settled between 30 days and 12 months. The recoverability of
premium receivable is assessed and provision is made for impairment based on objective evidence and having regard to past default
experience. Premium receivable is presented on the balance sheet net of any provision for impairment.

E. OUTWARDS REINSURANCE

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service received. Accordingly,
a portion of outwards reinsurance premium expense is treated as a prepayment and presented as deferred outwards reinsurance
expense on the balance sheet at the reporting date. The reinsurance premium payable is carried at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for reinsurance received.

F. CLAIMS

The outstanding claims liability is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future payments relating to
claims incurred at the reporting date with an additional risk margin to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. The
expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid or not yet paid in full, claims incurred but not
enough reported (IBNER), claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the anticipated direct and indirect claims handling costs. The
liability is discounted to present value using a risk free rate.

Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims liability.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability involves a number of key assumptions and is the most critical accounting estimate.
All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the information used regarding claims exposures is appropriate. However, given the
uncertainty in establishing the liability, it is likely that the final outcome will be different from the original liability established. Changes
in claims estimates are recognised in profit or loss in the reporting year in which the estimates are changed.

G. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES

Reinsurance and other recoveries received or receivable on paid claims and on outstanding claims (notified and not yet notified) are
recognised as income. Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims are presented as part of trade and other receivables net of any
provision for impairment based on objective evidence for individual receivables. Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on
outstanding claims are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts calculated on the same basis as the
outstanding claims liability. Reinsurance does not relieve the originating insurer of its liabilities to policyholders and is presented
separately on the balance sheet.

H. ACQUISITION COSTS

Costs associated with obtaining and recording general insurance contracts are referred to as acquisition costs. These costs include
advertising expenses, commissions or brokerage paid to agents or brokers, premium collection costs, risk assessment costs and other
administrative costs. Such costs are capitalised where they relate to the acquisition of new business or the renewal of existing
business, are presented as deferred acquisition costs, and are amortised on the same basis as the earning pattern of the premium
over the period of the related insurance contracts. The balance of the deferred acquisition costs at the reporting date represents the
capitalised deferred acquisition costs relating to unearned premium.



I. LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

The liability adequacy test is an assessment of the carrying amount of the unearned premium liability and is conducted at each
reporting date. If current estimates of the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims arising from the
rights and obligations under current general insurance contracts, plus an additional risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty in
the central estimate, exceed the unearned premium liability (net of reinsurance) less related deferred acquisition costs, then the
unearned premium liability is deemed to be deficient. Any deficiency arising from the test is recognised in profit or loss with the
corresponding impact on the balance sheet recognised first threugh the write down of deferred acquisition costs for the relevant
portfolio of contracts, with any remaining balance being recognised on the balance sheet as an unexpired risk liability. The test is
performed at the level of a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and that are managed together as a single
portfolio.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLICABLE TO OTHER ACTIVITIES

J. FEE AND OTHER INCOME

Fee based revenue is brought to account on an accruals basis being recognised as revenue on a straight line basis in accordance with
the passage of time as the services are provided. Other income is recognised on an accruals basis.

K. LEASES

All leases entered into are operating leases, where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
items. The majority of the lease arrangements are entered into as lessee for which the lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Certain sublease arrangements are entered into as the lessor for which the lease
payments are recognised as revenue on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease incentives relating to the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net
consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset. Operating lease incentives received are initially recognised as a liability, are
presented as trade and other payables, and are subsequently reduced through recognition in profit or loss as an integral part of the
total lease expense (lease payments are allocated between rental expense and reduction of the liability) on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.

L. TAXATION

I. Income tax

Income tax expense for a reporting period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous financial periods. Deferred tax expense/credit is the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities between the reporting
periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method for temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, except in the following

circumstances when no deferred tax asset or liability is recognised:

® temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transacticn did not
affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss;

m  temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

m temporary differences relating to the initial recognition of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liahilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Il. Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable. In these circumstances GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of the GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue
Department is included as part of other receivables and payables on the balance sheet.

M. INVESTMENTS

Investments comprise assets held to back insurance liabilities (also referred to as technical reserves) and assets that represent
shareholder's funds. All investments are managed and performance evaluated on a fair value basis for both external and internal
reporting purposes in accordance with a documented risk management strategy.

All investments are designated as fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. They are initially recorded at fair value
(being the cost of acquisition excluding transaction costs) and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date.
Changes in the fair value are recognised as realised or unrealised investment gains or losses in profit or loss. Purchases and sales of
investments are recognised on a trade date basis, being the date on which a commitment is made to purchase or sell the asset.
Transaction costs for purchases of investments are expensed as incurred. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive
future cash flows from the assets have expired, or have been transferred, and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have transferred.

For securities traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted mid market prices at the current reporting
date. For securities traded in a market that is not active, valuation techniques are used based on market observable inputs. Ina
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limited number of instances, valuation techniques are based on non market observable inputs.

Investment revenue is brought to account on an accruals basis. Revenue on investment in equity securities is deemed to accrue on
the date the dividends/distributions are declared, which for listed equity securities is deemed to be the ex-dividend date.

N. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investment in subsidiaries is initially recognised at cost (fair value of consideration provided plus directly attributable costs) and is
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount by the Company. Costs incurred in investigating and evaluating an
acquisition up to the point of formal commitment to an acquisition are expensed as incurred. Where the carrying value exceeds the
recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognised in profit or loss which can subsequently be reversed in certain conditions.

Where an additional interest is purchased in an existing subsidiary, the acquisition is treated as a transaction between owners and has
no impact on the statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend income from these investments is brought to account on an accruals basis. Dividend revenue is accrued on the date the
dividends are declared.

0. DERIVATIVES
The Consolidated entity uses a variety of derivatives to manage various risks. Derivatives are used solely to manage risk exposure and
are not used for trading or speculation.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value (generally the transaction price; the fair value of the consideration given or received) on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. The fair value is
determined by reference to current market quotes (current bid price for derivatives presented as assets and the current ask price for
derivatives presented as liabilities) or generally accepted valuation principles. The derivatives become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market rates relative to their terms. Transaction costs for purchases of
derivatives are expensed as incurred and presented in the statement of comprehensive income as investment expenses on assets
backing insurance liabilities and fee based, corporate and other expenses for assets representing shareholder's funds.

I. Investment operations

All of the derivatives managed in conjunction with the investment operations are recognised on the balance sheet (presented together
with the underlying investments) at fair value with movements in fair value being recognised as part of investment income in profit or
loss. None of the derivatives are designated for hedge accounting. This matches the accounting for the derivatives with the
accounting for the underlying investments.

Il. Corporate treasury operations

Derivatives are used to hedge exposure to foreign currency and interest rate movements in relation to corporate treasury transactions,
including interest bearing liabilities with the derivative being recognised on the balance sheet at fair value and movements in fair value
being recognised in profit or loss. The derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive, or as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

P. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are stated at the amounts to be received in the future and are presented net of any provision for
impairment. Due to their short tail nature trade and other receivables have not been stated at a discounted value. The recoverability
of debts is assessed on an ongoing basis and provision for impairment is made based on objective evidence and having regard to past
default experience. The impairment charge is recognised in profit or loss. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off.

Q. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost which is the fair value of consideration provided plus incidental costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

All items of plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment charges.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets less any residual value over the estimated
useful economic life. The useful economic lives for each class of property and equipment are as follows: 3 to 5 years for motor
vehicles; and 3 to 15 years for office and other equipment.

The carrying amount of each class of plant and equipment is reviewed each reporting date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying value of a class may be impaired. If any impairment is indicated or exists, the item is tested for impairment
by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset or its cash generating unit to the carrying value. An impairment charge is
recognised whenever the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss and may
be reversed where there has been an indication that the loss may no longer exist and/or there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

The net gain or loss on disposal of plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds.



R. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the acquisition is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The
consideration includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from & contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured at fair value on
the acquisition date. Any non-controlling interest is measured, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is contingent upon some future event or circumstance, the estimated amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value at the date of exchange. When the contingent consideration is classified as
a liability, the impact on any subsequent changes in fair value is recognised as profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Where the initial accounting for a business combination is determined only provisionally by the first reporting date after acquisition
date, the business combination is accounted for using those provisional values. Any subseguent adjustments to those provisional
values are recognised within 12 months of the acquisition date and are applied effective from the acquisition date.

Acguisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests, where the Company retains control, are treated as transactions between equity
holders. Therefore, any difference between the acquisition cost of the non-controlling interests and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests is recognised as an increase or decrease in equity.

S. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

I. Acquired intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are initially recorded at their cost at the date of acquisition being the fair value of the consideration
provided and, for assets acquired separately, incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised on a straight line basis (unless the pattern of usage of the benefits is significantly different) over the
estimated useful lives of the assets being the period in which the related benefits are expected to be realised (shorter of legal duration
and expected economic life). Amortisation rates and residual values are reviewed annually and any changes are accounted for
prospectively.

The carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed each reporting date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying value may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the item is tested for impairment by comparing the
recoverable amount of the asset or its cash generating unit to the carrying value. Where the recoverable amount is determined by the
value in use, the projected net cash flows are discounted using a pre tax discount rate. For assets with indefinite useful lives, the
recoverability of the carrying value of the assets is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. An impairment charge is recognised when the carrying value exceeds the
calculated recoverable amount. Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss and may be reversed where there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. :

ll. Software development expenditure

Software development expenditure that meets the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset is capitalised on the balance sheet
and amortised over its expected useful life, subject to impairment testing. Costs incurred in researching and evaluating a project up to
the point of formal commitment to a project are treated as research costs and are expensed as incurred.

The capitalised costs are amortised on a straight line basis over the period following completion of a project or implementation of part
of a project. The recoverability of the carrying amount of the asset is assessed in the same manner as for acquired intangible assets
with finite useful lives.

T. GOODWILL

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net identifiable assets and
contingent liabilities acquired and subsequently presented net of any impairment charges. Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
July 2004 has been carried forward on the basis of its deemed cost being the net carrying amount as at that date.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Units (CGUs). The carrying value of goodwill is tested
for impairment at each reporting date.

Where the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognised in profit or loss and cannot
subsequently be reversed. The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined by the present value of the estimated future cash flows
by using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the risks specific to the CGUs.

At the date of disposal of a business, attributed goodwill is used to calculate the gain or loss on disposal.

U. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received. The amounts are not discounted because the effect of the time value of money is not material.

V. ONEROUS CONTRACTS PROVISION
A provision is recognised for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract.

W. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

I. Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including bonuses) and annual leave are recognised at the nominal amounts unpaid at the reporting
date using remuneration rates that are expected to be paid when these liabilities are settled.

Il. Share based incentive arrangements
Share based remuneration is provided in different forms to eligible employees. All of the arrangements are equity settled share based
payments.

The fair value at grant date (the date at which the employer and the employee have a shared understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement) is determined for each equity settled share based payment using a valuation model which excludes the
impact of any non market vesting conditions. This fair value does not change over the life of the instrument. At each reporting date
during the vesting period (the period during which related employment services are provided), and upon the final vesting or expiry of
the equity instruments, the total accumulated expense is revised based on the fair value at grant date and the latest estimate of the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on non market vesting conditions only, and taking into account the
expired portion of the vesting period. Changes in the total accumulated expense from the previous reporting date are recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding movement in an equity reserve. Upon exercise of the relevant instruments, the balance of the share
based remuneration reserve relating to those instruments is transferred within equity.

The different treatment of market and non market vesting conditions means that if an equity instrument does not vest because a
participant ceases relevant employment then the accumulated expense charged in relation to that participant is reversed, but if an
equity instrument does not vest only because a market condition is not met, the expense is not reversed.

To satisfy obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on market at or near grant date
of the relevant arrangement and held in trust. This cost is initially recognised as a prepayment and then amortised through an equity
reserve over the vesting period of the related instruments to match against the recognition of the related expense.

Ill. Superannuation

For defined contribution superannuation plans, obligations for contributions are recognised in profit or loss as they become payable.
For defined benefit superannuation plans, the net financial position of the plans is recognised on the balance sheet and the movement
in the net financial position is recognised in profit or loss, except for remeasurements of defined benefit plans (experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions), which are recognised in other comprehensive income and (expense). An appropriate provision
is made for the unfunded defined benefit plan. Pensicns paid are charged against this provision.

X. FOREIGN CURRENCY

I. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial records are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (functional currency). The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the presentation currency of
the Consolidated entity.

Il. Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date are translated to the functional
currency using reporting date exchange rates. Resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTE 2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
In the process of applying the significant accounting policies, certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions are used, and
certain judgements are made.

The estimates and related assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are considered to be reasonable, the results of
which form the basis for judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised, and future periods if relevant. The approach to key estimates and judgements for this
reporting period are the same as the 2014 financial year, unless otherwise stated.

The areas where the estimates and assumptions involve a high degree of judgement or complexity and are considered significant to
the financial statements, listed together with reference to the notes to the financial statements where more information is provided,
are:
® insurance contracts related:

—  claims, refer to note §;

— reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims, refer ta note 9; and

— liability adeqguacy test, refer to note 11.B.

There are other amounts relating to insurance contracts that are based on allocation methodologies supported by
assumptions (e.g. deferred acquisition costs). The estimates relate to past events, do not incorporate forward looking
considerations, and the methodology supporting them generally do not change from year to year.

m  other:
—  intangible assets and goodwill impairment testing, refer to notes 14 and 15;
—  acquired intangible assets initial measurement and determination of useful life, refer to note 14; and
— income tax and related assets and liabilities, refer to note 7;

NOTE 3. RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT CATEGORIES AND RISK MITIGATION

I. Strategic risk

Strategic risk is managed by the IAG Executive team with Board oversight. Key elements in the management of strategy and strategic
risk include the strategic planning programme and associated oversight arrangements. Progress against strategic priorities is regularly
considered. Strategic risks are included in 1AG's enterprise risk profile as appropriate.

Il. Insurance risk

A key risk from operating in the general insurance industry is the exposure to insurance risk arising from underwriting general
insurance contracts. The insurance contracts transfer risk to the insurer by indemnifying the policyholders against adverse effects
arising from the occurrence of specified uncertain future events. There is a risk that the actual amount of claims to be paid in relation
to contracts will be different to the amount estimated at the time a product was designed and priced. The Company is exposed to this
risk as the price for a contract must be set before the losses relating to the product are known. As such, the insurance business
involves inherent uncertainty. The Company also faces other risks relating to the conduct of the general insurance business including
financial risks and capital risks.

A fundamental part of the Group's overall risk management approach is the effective governance and management of the risks that
impact the amount, timing and certainty of cash flows arising from insurance contracts.

Insurance activities primarily involve the underwriting of risks and the management of claims as well as the product design, product
pricing, reserving and concentration risk (refer below). A disciplined approach to risk management is adopted rather than a premium
volume or market share orientated approach. It is believed that this approach provides the greatest long term likelihood of being able
to meet the objectives of all stakeholders.

a. INSURANCE PROCESSES
The key processes to mitigate insurance risk include the following:

i. Acceptance and pricing of risk

The underwriting of large numbers of less than fully correlated individual risks across a range of classes of insurance business reduces
the variability in overall claims experience over time. Maximum limits are set for the acceptance of risk both on an individual contract
basis and for classes of business and specific risk groupings. Management information systems are to be maintained that provide up-
to-date, reliable data on the risks to which the business is exposed at any point in time. Efforts are made, including plain language
policy terms, to ensure there is no misalignment between what policyholders perceive will be paid when a policy is initially sold and
what is actually paid when a claim is made. :

Statistical models that combine historical and projected data are used to calculate premiums and monitor claims patterns for each
class of business. The data used includes historical pricing and claims analysis for each class of business as well as current

developments in the respective markets and classes of business. All data used is subject to rigorous verification and reconciliation
processes. The models incorporate consideration of prevailing market conditions.
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ii. Claims management and provisioning

Initial claims determination is managed by claims officers with the requisite degree of experience and competence with the assistance,
where appropriate, of a loss adjustor or other party with specialist knowledge. It is the Company's policy to respond to and settle all
claims quickly whenever possible and to pay claims fairly, based on policyholders' full entitlements.

Claims provisions are established using actuarial valuation models and include a risk margin for uncertainty (refer to the claims note at
note 8).

iii. Reinsurance
Refer to reinsurance risk section lll below for further details.

b. CONCENTRATIONS OF INSURANCE RISK

Concentration risk is particularly relevant in the case of catastrophes, usually natural disasters, which generally result in a
concentration of affected policyholders over and above the norm and which constitutes the largest individual potential financial loss.
Catastrophe losses are an inherent risk of the general insurance industry that have contributed, and will continue to contribute, to
potentially material year-to-year fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position. Catastrophes are caused by various
natural events including earthquakes, hailstorms, storms and high winds. The Company is also exposed to certain human-made
catastrophic events such as industrial accidents and building collapses. The nature and level of catastrophes in any period cannot be
predicted accurately but can be estimated through the utilisation of predictive models. The Company actively limits the aggregate
insurance exposure to catastrophe losses in regions that are subject to high levels of natural catastrophes.

Each year, the Company sets its tolerance for concentration risk and purchases reinsurance in excess of these tolerances. Various
models are used to estimate the impact of different potential natural disasters and other catastrophes. The tolerance for
concentration risk is used to determine the Maximum Event Retention (MER) which is the maximum net exposure to insurance risk
determined appropriate for any single event with a given probahility. The selected MER is also determined based on the cost of
purchasing the reinsurance and capital efficiency.

Specific processes for monitoring identified key concentrations are set out below.

RISK SOURCE OF CONCENTRATION RISK MANAGEMENT MEASURES

An accumulation of risks arising from a Insured property concentrations Accumulation risk modelling, reinsurance

natural peril protection

A large property loss Fire or collapse affecting one buildingora Maximum acceptance limits, property risk
group of adjacent buildings grading, reinsurance protection

Multiple liability retentions being involved in Response by a large number of policiesto  Purchase of reinsurance clash protection
the same event the one event

IIl. Reinsurance Risk )
Reinsurance is used to limit exposure to large single claims as well as accumulation of claims that arise from the same or similar
events.

Risks underwritten are reinsured in order to limit exposure to losses, stabilise earnings, protect capital resources and ensure efficient
control and spread of the risks underwritten.

The-use of reinsurance introduces credit risk. The management of reinsurance includes the monitoring of reinsurers’ credit risk and
controls the exposure to reinsurance counterparty default. Refer to note IV below for further details.

IV. Financial Risk

The Consolidated entity is exposed to a variety of financial risks in the normal course of business; market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Board and senior
management of the Group have developed, implemented and maintain a Risk Management Strategy (RMS) across the Group. The
Consolidated entity complies with the risk management policies of the Group. The policies form the Consolidated entity's procedures,
processes and controls that manage material risks, financial and nen financial, likely to be faced by the Consolidated entity.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact due to changes in fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments from
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and equity prices. All non-New Zealand dollar denominated securities
are hedged back to NZ dollars, therefore the relevant market risks are-interest rate risk and price risk.

a. INTEREST RATE RISK

i. Nature of the risks and how managed

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from an unfavourable movement in market interest rates. Fixed interest rate assets and
liabilities are exposed to changes in carrying value derived from mark-to-market revaluations. Financial assets and liabilities with
floating interest rates create exposure to cash flow volatility.

The underwriting of general insurance contracts creates exposure to the risk that interest rate movements may materially impact the
value of the insurance liabilities. Movements in interest rates should have minimal impact on the insurance profit due to the
Consolidated entity's policy of investing in assets backing insurance liabilities principally in fixed interest securities broadly matched to
the expected payment pattern of the insurance liabilities. Movements in investment income on assets backing insurance liabilities
broadly offset the impact of movements in discount rates on the insurance liabilities other than the changes in credit spreads on the
fixed interest securities which are expected to reverse on maturity.




ii. Sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis provided in the following table demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. The sensitivities do not
include interdependencies among variables, but rather show isclated interest rate movements.

The investments in interest bearing securities are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. Movements in market interest rates
impact the price of the securities (and hence their fair value measurement) and so would impact profit or loss. The impact from the
measurement of the interest bearing securities held at reporting date of a change in interest rates at reporting date by +1% or -1%
{e.g. a move from 4% to 5% or to 3%) on profit before tax, net of related derivatives, is shown in the following table:

PARENT AND

CONSQLIDATED

2015 2014

$000 $000

Impact to Impact to

profit profit
Investments - interest bearing securities and related interest rate derivatives +1% (24,957) (27,034)
-1% 25,939 28,055

The majority of the interest bearing securities are expected to be held to maturity and so movements in the fair value are expected to
reverse upon maturity of the instruments.

b. PRICE RISK

i. Nature of the risk and how managed

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate or forsign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded on the market. The Consolidated
entity has exposure to equity price risk through its investment in equities (through certain trusts) and the use of equity related
derivative contracts.

Exposure to equity price risk is monitored through several measures that include value-at-risk analysis, position limits, scenario testing,
and stress testing.

ii. Sensitivity
The impact from the measurement of the investments held at reporting date of a change in equity values at reporting date by +10% or
-10% on profit before tax, net of related derivatives, is shown in the table below:

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
$000 $000
Investments - Trust securities and equity derivatives +10% 26,199 -
-10% (24,973) -
CREDIT RISK

a. NATURE OF THE RISK AND HOW MANAGED

Credit risk is the risk of loss from a counterparty failing to meet their financial obligations. The Consolidated entity's credit risk arises
predominantly from investment activities, reinsurance activities and dealings with intermediaries. The Group's credit risk appetite is
approved by the IAG Board and the Group has a Credit Risk Policy which is consistent with the IAG Board's risk appetite and also
approved by the IAG Board. The policy outlines the framework and procedures in place to ensure an adequate and appropriate level of
moenitoring and management of credit quality throughout the Group.

Group Treasury is responsible for ensuring that the policies governing the management of credit quality risk are properly implemented.
All new, changed and continuing credit risk exposures must be approved in accordance with the Group's approval authority framework.

Concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics. At the reporting date, with the
exception of the reinsurance recoverable from the Group captive reinsurers, there are no material concentrations of credit risk in the
investment portfolios as the Consolidated entity transacts with a large number of counterparties without any individual counterparty
having a material outstanding balance except for possible exposure to the major banks in New Zealand. With regard to the Group
captive reinsurers, ultimately, the Consolidated entity's exposure is to the external reinsurer with whom the captives have placed the
Group's reinsurance programme.
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h. CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE
i. Premium and reinsurance reccveries on paid claims receivable
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is the carrying amount of the receivables on the balance sheet.

An ageing analysis for premium receivable and reinsurance recoveries receivable is provided here. The amounts are aged according to
their original due date.

CONSOLIDATED
NOT OVERDUE OVERDUE TOTAL
<30 days 30-120 days >120 days
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2015

Premium receivable 434,535 2,948 486 1,921 439,890

Provision for lapses (5,239) (1,402) (371) (1,468) (8.480)
Net balance 429,296 1,546 115 453 431,410

Reinsurance recaveries cn paid claims 64.088 - - 64,088

Net balance 64,088 - - 64,088

Other trade debtors 39,025 - - 39,025

Net balance 39,025 - - 39,025

2014

Premium receivable 467,562 2,811 1,636 2,769 A74,778

Provision for lapses (5,924) (1,916) (1,077) (1,822) (10,739)
Net balance 461,638 895 559 47 464,039

Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims 29,454 - - 29,454

Net balance 29,454 - - - 29,454

Other trade debtors 39,910 = - 39,910

Net balance 39,910 - - - 39,910

A significant portion of the premium receivable balance relates to policies which are paid on a monthly instalment basis. It is important
to note that the non payment of amounts due under such arrangements allows for the cancellation of the related insurance contract
eliminating both the credit risk and insurance risk for the unpaid amounts. Upon cancellation of a policy the outstanding premium
receivable and revenue is reversed.

The provision for lapses at reporting date for receivables balances totalled $8.5 million (2014 - $10.7 million). The net movement in
the aggregated provision for the current period was $2.2 million (2014 - $1.2 million).

ii. Reinsurance reccveries receivable on outstanding claims

Reinsurance arrangements mitigate insurance risk but expose the Consolidated entity to credit risk. Reinsurance is placed with
companies based on an evaluation of the financial strength of the reinsurers, terms of coverage, and price. Group's captive reinsurer
has clearly defined credit policies for the approval and management of credit risk in relaticn to reinsurers. Group's captive reinsurer
monitors the financial condition of its reinsurers on an ongeing basis and periodically reviews the reinsurers’ ability to fulfil their
obligations to the captive under respective existing and future reinsurance contracts. Some of the reinsurers are domiciled outside of
the jurisdictions in which the Consolidated entity operates and so there is the potential for additional risk such as country risk and
transfer risk.

The level and quality of reinsurance protection is an important element in understanding the financial strength of an insurer. The
financial condition of a reinsurer is a critical deciding factor when entering into a reinsurance agreement. The longer the tail of the
direct insurance, the more important is the credit rating of the reinsurer.

It is the Group's policy to deal only with reinsurers with credit ratings of at least Standard & Poor's BBB+ (or other rating agency
equivalent) without collateralisation. Having reinsurance protection with strong reinsurers also benefits the Consolidated entity in its
regulatory capital calculations. The capital risk charges vary with the grade of the reinsurers such that higher credit quality
reinsurance counterparties incur lower regulatory capital charges.




The following table provides information regarding the credit risk relating to the reinsurance recoveries receivable on the outstanding
claims balance, excluding other recoveries, based on Standard & Poor's counterparty credit ratings. These rating allocations relate to
balances accumulated from reinsurance programmes in place over a number of years and so will not necessarily align with the rating

allocations noted above for the current programme.

CREDIT RATING PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

% of total % of total

AA 100 100
Total 100 100

No separate provision for impairment has been recognised for the reinsurance recoveries on outstanding claims balance. The actuarial

estimates include a credit risk component in the underlying balance and therefore no separate provision is required.

iii. Investments

The Consolidated entity is exposed to credit risk from investments in third parties where the Consolidated entity holds debt and similar

securities issued by those entities.

The credit risk relating to investments is monitored and assessed, and maximum exposures are limited. The maximum exposure to

credit risk loss as at reporting date is the carrying amount of the investments on the balance sheet as they are measured at fair value.

The investments comprising assets backing insurance liahilities are restricted to investment grade securities.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk relating to the interest bearing investments based on Standard &

Poor's counterparty credit ratings.

CREDIT RATING PARENT AND

: CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

% of total % of total

AAA 54 36

AA 40 55

A 6 5

BBB and below - 4

Total 100 100
LIQUIDITY RISK

a. NATURE OF THE RISK AND HOW MANAGED

Liguidity risk is concerned with the risk of there being insufficient cash resources to meet payment obligations without affecting the
daily operations or the financial condition of the Censolidated entity. Liguidity facilitates the ability to meet expected and unexpected

requirements for cash. The liquidity position is derived from operating cash flows, investment portfolios and access to outside sources

of liquidity such as bank lines of credit, reinsurance arrangements and other sources.

The Consolidated entity complies with Group liquidity risk management practices, which include a Group policy, and has the framework

and procedures in place to ensure an adeguate and appropriate level of monitoring and management of liquidity.

Underwriting insurance contracts exposes the Consolidated entity to liquidity risk through the obligation to make payments of unknown

amounts on unknown dates. The assets backing insurance liabilities consist predominantly of government securities (the most liguid
of securities) and other very high quality securities which can generally be readily sold or exchanged for cash. The assets are
managed so as to effectively match the maturity profile of the assets with the expected pattern of claims payments. The debt
securities are restricted to investment grade securities with concentrations of investments managed by various criteria including:

issuer, industry, geography and credit rating.
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b. LIQUIDITY RISK EXPOSURE
The breakdown of the fixed term investments are provided by expected maturity. Actual maturities may differ from expected maturities
because certain counterparties have the right to call or prepay certain obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

A maturity analysis of the estimated net discounted outstanding claims liability based on the remaining term to payment at the
reporting date and the investments that have a fixed term is provided in the table below.

This maturity prefile is a key tool used in the investment of assets backing insurance liahilities in accordance with the policy of broadly
matching the maturity profile of the assets with the estimated pattern of claims payments.

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED

NET DISCOUNTED

OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
MATURITY ANALYSIS LIABILITY INVESTMENTS
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Floating interest rate (at call) - - 71,293 76,206
Within 1 year or less 1,118,360 811,542 486,019 741,125
Within 1 to 2 years 365,560 325,385 459,328 180,419
Within 2 to 3 years 125,922 174,690 377,158 423,388
Within 3 to 4 years 13,603 51,332 160,249 479,622
Within 4 to 5 years 11,574 17,286 144,667 227,814
QOver 5 years - - - 75,998
Total 4,635,019 1,380,235 1,698,714 2204472

Financial liabilities including derivative liabilities, trade and other payables and related party payables are all due to mature within one
year.

Timing of future claim payments is inherently uncertain. The table above represents estimated timing.

V. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Operational risk can impact other risk categories. When contrals fail, an operational risk incident can cause injury, damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Consolidated entity does not aim to eliminate all
operational risks, but manages these by initiating an appropriate control framework and by monitoring and managing the potential
risks.

The Group Risk Management Strategy (RMS) includes consideration of operational risk. Operaticnal risk is identified and assessed on
an ongoing basis and the capital management strategy includes consideration of operational risk. Management and staff are
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing operational risks in accordance with their roles and responsibilities. The Group
has an internal audit function which monitors processes and procedures surrounding operational risk.



NOTE 4. ANALYSIS OF INCOME

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. GENERAL INSURANCE REVENUE ’
Gross written premium 1,538,739 1,582,383 1,538,739 1,582,383
Movement in unearned premium liability 19,975 (21,611) 19,975 (21,611)
Premium revenue 1,558,714 1,560,772 1,558,714 1560772
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 226,485 778,443 226,485 778,443
Total general insurance revenue 1,785,199 2,339,215 1,785,199 2339215
B. INVESTMENT INCOME
Dividend revenue 197 734 197 734
Interest revenue 83,232 90,283 83,469 90,467
Trust revenue 34,390 - 34,390 -
Total investment revenue 117,819 91,017 118,056 91,201
Realised net gains and (losses) (15,531) 49,664 (15,531) 49,664
Unrealised net gains and (losses) 27,457 (34,682) 27,141 (34,706)
Total investment income 129,445 105,999 129,666 106,159
Represented by
Investment income on assets backing insurance liabilities 70,444 58,792 70,444 58,792
Investment income on shareholder's funds 59,001 47,207 59,222 47,367
129,445 105,999 129,666 106,159
C. FEE AND OTHER INCOME
Fee based revenue - - 9,053 6,819
Total fee and other income - - 9,053 6,819
Total income A914644 2445214 1,923918 2452193
NOTE 5. ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES
PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Underwriting, fee based, corporate and other expenses include the following:
Amortisation of intangible assets 7,013 6,451 7,638 6,994
Bad debts written off 101 185 101 185
Commissions 165,562 165,609 165,562 165,609
Depreciation - plant and equipment 9,330 9,081 9,591 9,231
Directors' fees 485 437 485 A37
Operating lease costs 20,395 19,938 20,556 20,074
Software costs 3,029 3,268 3,029 3,268
(Gain)/Loss on sale of plant and equipment 571 12 571 12
Restructuring costs 3,908 1,526 3,908 1,526
Share based remuneration expense 3,140 2,940 3,140 2,940
Defined contribution superannuation expense 7,091 5521 7,541 5971
Employee benefit expense 298,684 234,493 304,830 236,971
NOTE 6. REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR
PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Audit of the financial statements 708 767 725 783
Audit of statutory returns in accordance with regulatory
requirements 73 71 73 71
Other assurance services 19 19 19 19
Agreed upon procedures work - 24 - 24
Total remuneration of auditor 800 881 817 897

Other assurance services relate to a limited assurance engagement regarding contractual obligations under an agency agreement.
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NOTE 7. INCOME TAX

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current tax 298 29 298 29
Deferred tax (237,180) 8,062 (235,887) 8,883
(Over)/under provided in prior year (2,617) 120 (2,617) 120
Income tax expense/(credit) —(239.499) ___ 8211 _(238,206) ___ 9,032
B. INCOME TAX RECONCILIATION
The income tax for the financial year differs from the amount
calculated on the profit/(loss) before income tax. The differences
are reconciled as follows:
Profit/(loss) for the year before income tax (834,314) 25458 (830,637) 27,943
Income tax calculated at 28% (233,608) 7,128 (232,578) 7,824
Amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating
taxable income
Amortisation of intangible assets - - 258 -
Foreign investment income adjustment (3,810) - (3,810) -
Foreign withholding tax 298 298
Non-deductible expenses 315 1,210 320 1,358
Other (77) (247) (77) (270)
Income tax expense/(credit) applicable to current year (236,882) 8,091 (235,589) 8,912
Adjustment relating to prior year (2,617) 120 (2,617) 120
Income tax expense/(credit) attributable to profit/(loss) for the
year (239,499) 8,211 (238,206) 9,032
C. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Depreciation 4,028 1,785 4,028 1,785
Deferred acquisition costs (41,359) (43,358) (41,359) (43,358)
Tax losses 535,493 303,559 534,199 302,733
Other 11,641 8,973 11,420 8,644

509,803 270,959 508,288 269,804

D. IMPUTATION CREDITS

Imputation credits at the beginning of the financial year 2,751 2,448 3,199 2,896
New Zealand tax payments/(refunds) - 27 - 27
Imputation credits attached to dividends received 77 276 77 2786
Imputation credits at the end of the financial year 2,828 2,751 3,276 3,199

The imputation credits are available to shareholders of the Company:

Through the Company 2,828 2,751 2,828 2,751
Through subsidiaries - - 448 448
2,828 2,751 3,276 3,199

Tax losses have been recognised as a deferred tax asset since it is considered probable, based on profit forecasts, that the losses will
be offset against future taxable income.
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NOTE 8. CLAIMS

A. NET CLAIMS EXPENSE IN THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Current year claims relate to claim events that occurred in the current financial year. Prior year claims relate to a reassessment of the
claim events that occurred in all previous financial periods.

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

Current year  Prior years Total Current year Prior years Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Gross claims - undiscounted 734,708 1,205,193 1,939,901 743,334 934,795 1,678,129

Discount (3,122) 51,057 47,935 (5,549) 6,585 1,036

Gross claims - discounted 731,586 1,256,250 1,987,836 737,785 941380 1,679,165
Reinsurance and other recoveries -

undiscounted (105,828) (81,579) (187,407) (76,603) (723,031) (799,634)

Discount 617 (39,695) (39,078) 1,533 19,658 21,191
Reinsurance and other recoveries -

discounted (105,211) (121,274) (226,485} (75,070) (703,373) (r78,443)

Net claims expense 626,375 1,1434976 1,761,351 662,715 238,007 900,722

The pricr years net claims expense substantially pertains to a revision of the expected cost of the Canterbury earthquakes that
occurred in the year ended 30 June 2011,

B. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY RECOGNISED ON THE BALANCE SHEET

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

$000 $000

1. Composition of gross outstanding claims liability

Gross central estimate - undiscounted 2,184,634 2,256,811
Claims handling costs 26,977 28,893
Risk margin 345,440 318,614
2,557,051 2,604,318

Discount to present value . (41.918) (89,849)
Gross outstanding claims liability - discounted 2515133 2,514,469

The outstanding claims liability includes $818.5 million (2014 - $1,242.7 million) which is expected to be settled more than 12
months from the reporting date.

Il. Reconciliation of mevements in discounted outstanding claims liability

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
Reinsurance Reinsurance
and other and other
Gross recoveries Net Gross recoveries Net
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,514,469 (1,134,234) 1,380,235 2,695,684 (897,619) 1,797,965
Movement in the prior year central estimate 1,097,005 (141,144) 955,861 1,019,951 (F72,223) 247,728

Current year claims incurred 720,493 (60,204) 660,289 676,683 (39,660) 637,023
Claims paid/recoveries received (1,987,158) 480,644 (1,506,514) (1,860,280) 579,570 (1,280,710)
Movement in discounting 82,694 (31,891) 50,803 30,202 (3,305) 26,897
Movement in risk margin 87,630 6,715 94,345 (47,671) (997) (48,668)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,515,133 (880,114) 1,635,019 _ 2514469 (1,134234) 1,380,235
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Ill. Central estimate and risk margin
a. REPORTING DATE VALUES

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
% %

The percentage risk margin applied to the net outstanding claims liability (excluding Canterbury
earthquake claims}) 11.4 12.0
The probability of adequacy of the risk margin 87.5 87.5

b. PROCESS

The outstanding claims liability is determined based on three building blocks being:
B acentral estimate of the future cash flows;

m  discounting for the effect of the time value of money; and

m 3 risk margin for uncertainty.

i. Future cash flows

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability is based on a variety of actuarial techniques that analyse experience, trends and
other relevant factors. The expected future payments include those in relaticn to claims reported but not yet paid or not yet paid in full,
claims incurred but not encugh reported (IBNER), claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the anticipated direct and indirect
claims handling costs.

The estimation process involves using the Consolidated entity's specific data, relevant industry data and more general economic data.
Each class of business is usually examined separately and the process involves consideration of a large number of factors. These
factors may include the risks to which the business is exposed at a point in time, claim frequencies and average claim sizes, historical
trends in the incidence and development of claims reported and finalised, legal, social and economic factors that may impact upon
each class of business, the key actuarial assumptions set out in section IV and the impact of reinsurance and other recoveries.

Different actuarial valuation models are used for different claims types and lines of business. The selection of the appropriate
actuarial model takes into account the characteristics of a claim type and class of business and the extent of the development of each
accident period.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability for the Canterbury earthquake events has been determined using a number of
technigques. Reported claims are grouped together by various factors such as claimant, risk class, land damage zone and repair or
rebuild status. Estimates of IBNR and IBNER are made based on observed average costs and development of similar claimants. The
estimation of these claims has a greater degree of uncertainty than non earthquake claims, including the ultimate contribution to the
cost of these events by the Earthquake Commission (EQC) in terms of its statutory liability under the provisions of the Earthquake
Commission Act 1993.

The outstanding claims estimates make a specific allowance for the apporticnment of the ultimate cost of commercial and residential
claims across the three main Canterbury earthquake events. The apportionment methodology takes into consideration land damage
information and specific engineering advice.

ii. Discounting
Projected future claims payments, both gross and net of reinsurance and other recoveries, and associated claims handling costs are
discounted to a present value using appropriate risk free discount rates.

jiii. Risk margin

The central estimate of the outstanding claims liahility is an estimate which is intended to contain no deliberate or conscious over or
under estimaticn and is commonly described as providing the mean of the distribution of future cash flows. It is considered
appropriate to add a risk margin to the central estimate in order for the claims liability to have an increased probability of adequacy.
The risk margin refers to the amount by which the liability recognised in the financial statements is greater than the actuarial central
estimate of the liahility.

As at 30 June 2015, the central estimates of the outstanding claims liability for IAG NZ was reviewed by Christian Barrington (Fellow of
the New Zealand Society of Actuaries) of IAG New Zealand Limited. The methodology used was peer reviewed by Finity Consulting Pty
Limited.

There were no qualifications contained in the actuarial report although the actuary has emphasised the level of uncertainty in the
earthquake claims cost estimates, especially with regard to the apportionment of claims costs between the multiple events. The
actuary was satisfied as to the nature, sufficiency and accuracy of the data used te determine the outstanding claims liability.

Uncertainties surrounding the outstanding claims liability estimation process include those relating to the data, actuarial models and
assumptions, the statistical uncertainty associated with a general insurance claims runoff process, and risks external to the NZ Group,
for example, the impact of future legislative reform and legal judgements arising out of the Canterbury earthquake events. Uncertainty
from these sources is examined for each class of business and expressed as a volatility measure relative to the net central estimate.
The volatility measure for each class is derived after consideration of stochastic modelling and benchmarking to industry analysis.
Certain product classes may be subject to the emergence of new types of latent claims and such uncertainties are considered when
setting the volatility, and hence the risk margin appropriate for those classes.

The measure of the volatility is referred to as the coefficients of variation (CoV). The CoV is defined as the standard deviation of the
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distribution of future cash flows divided by the mean.
Short tail classes of business have relatively lower levels of volatility.

The risk margin required to provide a given probability of adequacy for two or more classes of business or for two or more geographic
locations combined is likely to be less than the sum of the risk margins for the individual classes. This reflects the benefit of
diversification in general insurance.

The measure of the diversification benefit is referred to as correlation. The higher the correlation between two classes of business, the
more likely it is that a negative outcome in one class will correspend to a negative cutcome in the other class. The correlations
adopted are normally derived from industry analysis, historical experience and the judgement of experienced and qualified actuaries.

The determination of the overall risk margin takes into account the volatility of each class of business and the correlations between
the lines of business. The current risk margin, which has been determined after assessing the inherent uncertainty in the central
estimate and the prevailing market environment, results in an overall probability of adequacy for the outstanding claims liability of
87.5%. For determining the risk margin for the Canterbury earthquake events the risks of further deterioration in claim costs and the
impact of apportionment has been considered across the 4 September 2010, 22 February 2011 and 13 June 2011 earthquakes: for
the 4 September 2010 and 22 February 2011 event a risk margin has been specifically determined having regard to all the facts and
circumstances as they are presently understood.

IV. Actuarial assumptions

The following ranges of key actuarial assumptions were used in the measurement of outstanding claims and recoveries, where
appropriate, at the reporting date. Specific monetary reserves have been allocated to the earthquake events for inflation and claims
handling.

ASSUMPTION

EXCLUDING
CANTERBURY CANTERBURY
EARTHQUAKE CLAIMS  EARTHQUAKE CLAIMS

2015
Discounted average term to settlement 0.9 years 0.8 years
Inflation rate 2.00% 2.00%
Discount rate 2.39%-2.96% 2.39%-2.96%
Claims handling costs ratio n/a 0.80%-5.10%

2014
Discounted average term to settlement 1.1 years 0.9 years
Inflation rate 2.45% 2.45%
Discount rate 3.00%4.12% 3.00%-4.12%
Claims handling costs ratio n/a 0.80%-5.10%

PROCESS USED TO DETERMINE ASSUMPTIONS
A description of the key assumptions and the processes used to determine those assumptions is provided below.

i. Discounted average term to settlement

The discounted average term to settlement relates to the expected payment pattern for claims (inflated and discounted). Itis
calculated by class of business and is generally based on historical settlement patterns. The discounted average term to settlement,
while not itself an assumption, provides a summary indication of the future cash flow pattern.
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il. Inflation rate
Insurance costs are subject to inflationary pressures. Economic inflation assumptions are set by reference to current economic
indicators.

iii. Discount rate
The discount rate is derived from market yields on government securities.

iv. Claims handling costs ratio

The future claims handling costs ratio is generally calculated with reference to the historical experience of claims handling costs as a
percentage of past payments. Claims handling costs in relation to Canterbury earthquake events have been estimated separately,
taking into account the best information available at the reporting date.

V. The effect of changes in assumptions

a. GENERAL IMPACT OF CHANGES

i. Discounted average term to settlement

A decrease in the discounted average term to settlement would reflect claims being paid sooner than anticipated and so would
increase the claims expense. Note that this sensitivity test only extends or shortens the term of the payments assumed in the
valuation, without changing the total nominal amount of the payments.

ii. Inflation rates
Expected future payments are inflated to take account of inflationary increases. An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of
economic inflation will have a corresponding decrease or increase on profit and loss.

iii. Discount rate

The outstanding claims liability is calculated with reference to expected future payments. These payments are discounted to adjust for
the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have a corresponding increase or decrease ¢n
profit and loss.

iv. Claims handling costs ratio
An increase in the ratio reflects an increase in the estimate for the internal costs of administering claims. An increase or decrease in
the ratio assumption will have a corresponding decrease or increase on profit and loss.

h. SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS OF CHANGES

The impact on the profit and loss before income tax to changes in key actuarial assumptions is summarised below. Each change has
been calculated in isclation of the other changes and is stated net of reinsurance recoveries. The movements are stated in absolute
terms where the base assumption is a percentage, for example, if the base inflation rate assumption was 3.5%, a 1% increase would
mean assuming a 4.5% inflation rate.

The impact on comprehensive income is disclosed for each of the key assumptions:

PARENT AND
ASSUMPTION CONSOLIDATED
EXCLUDING
MOVEMENT IN CANTERBURY CANTERBURY
ASSUMPTION  EARTHQUAKE CLAIMS  EARTHQUAKE CLAIMS
$000 $000
2015
Discounted average term to settlement +1 Month 2,662 432
-1 Month (2,669) (433)
Inflation rate +1% (9,088) (1,097)
1% 8,869 1,063
Discount rate +1% 8,869 1,063
A% (9,088) (1,097)
Claims handling costs ratio +1% n/a (4,977)
-1% n/a 4,977
2014
Discounted average term to settlement +1 Month 2,195 461
-1 Month (2,201) (462)
Inflation rate +1% (8,755) (1,394)
-1% 8,525 1,349
Discount rate +1% 8,525 1,349
-1% (8,755) (1,394)
Claims handling costs ratio +1% n/a (3,042)
-1% n/a 3,042
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NOTE 9. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES ON OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
$000 $000

A. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES RECEIVABLE ON OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
Expected reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on outstanding claims - undiscounted 896,116 1,184,451
Discount to present value (16,002) {50,217)
Expected reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on outstanding claims - discounted 880,114 1134234

The carrying value of reinsurance recoveries and other recoveries includes $275.9 million (2014 - $674.0 million) which is expected to
be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date.

The reinsurance recoveries receivable on outstanding claims includes $666.2 million (2014 - $839.3 million) recoverable from IAG Re
Labuan (L) Berhad and $183.4 million (2014 - $254.8 million) from IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited.

B. ACTUARIAL ASSUNMPTIONS

The measurement of reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates.
The amounts are generally calculated using actuarial assumptions and methods similar to those used for the outstanding claims
liability (refer to section IV of the ¢claims note).

Where possible, the valuation of reinsurance recoveries is linked directly to the valuation of the gross outstanding claims liability.
Accordingly, the valuation of outstanding reinsurance recoveries is subject to similar risks and uncertainties as the valuation of the
outstanding claims liability. Significant individual losses (for example those relating to catastrophe events) are analysed on a case by
case basis for reinsurance purposes.

C. THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS
The effect of changes in assumptions on the net outstanding claims liability, which incorporates the reinsurance recoveries on
outstanding claims and other recoveries receivable, is disclesed in the claims note.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has in place a dedicated risk management function responsible for the development and maintenance of the risk
management framework. The framework includes a written Reinsurance Management Strategy (REMS) which sets out key elements
of the reinsurance management framework, processes for setting and monitoring the Maximum Event Retention {(MER), processes for
selecting, implementing, monitoring and reviewing reinsurance arrangements and identification, roles and respensibilities of those
charged with managerial responsibility for the reinsurance management framework. The REMS is updated annually and approved by
the IAG Group Board.

E. REINSURANCE PROGRAMME ‘

Risks underwritten are reinsured in order to limit exposure to losses, stabilise earnings, protect capital resources and ensure efficient
control and spread of the risks underwritten. The Company has its own reinsurance programme and determines its own risk limits. To
facilitate the reinsurance process, manage counterparty exposure and create economies of scale, the IAG Group has established a
captive reinsurance operation. This operation acts as the reinsurer for the Group by being the main buyer of the Group’s outwards
reinsurance programme. The reinsurance operation is intended to manage reinsurance and earnings volatility and the IAG Group's
exposure to catastrophe risk. The operation retains a portion of the intercompany business it assumes and retrocedes (passes on) the
remainder to external reinsurers.

While a large portion of the business ceded by the Company is reinsured with the Group's captive reinsurance operation, the Company
purchases additional reinsurance protection outside the Group. This generally relates to facultative reinsurance covers.

The reinsurance operation purchases reinsurance on behalf of the Company to cover a maximum return period of at least the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand's (RBNZ) minimum of 1:500 year event on a single site basis but is authorised to elect to purchase covers up to
a 1:500 year event on a whole of portfolio basis. Dynamic financial analysis modelling is used to determine the optimal level to which
reinsurance should be purchased for capital efficiency, compared with the cost and benefits of covers available in the market.

The reinsurance programmes consist of a combination of the following reinsurance protection:

® A Group Catastrophe cover which is placed in line with the strategy of buying to at least the level of a 1:500 year event
on a modified whole of portfolio basis. The catastrophe programme for the Company has been placed on an annual
hasis commencing 1 July 2015. Cover purchased is dynamic, the maximum event retention (MER) changes as total
requirements change and as the reinsurance purchase strategy evolves.
A Surplus cover, which provides "per risk" protection for the commercial property and engineering businesses.
Excess of loss reinsurance for casualty, marine, motor and property portfolios.
With effect from 1 July 2015 the Company has entered into a whole of account 20% quota share agreement with the
Group's captive reinsurer. The captive will receive 20% of the Company's Gross Written Premium and will pay 20% of
all claims. The Captive will also reimburse the Company for its share of operating costs and pay a percentage based
fee of the premium ceded.
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NOTE 10. DEFERRED INSURANCE ASSETS

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
$000 $000
A. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
Reconciliation of movements
Deferred acquisition costs at the beginning of the financial year 154,957 152,329
Acquisition costs deferred 147,729 154,957
Amortisation charged to profit (154,957) (152,329)
Deferred acquisition costs at the end of the financial year 147,729 ___ 154957
B. DEFERRED OUTWARDS REINSURANCE EXPENSE
Reconciliation of movements
Deferred outwards reinsurance expense at the beginning of the financial year 303,726 330,143
Reinsurance expenses deferred 394,206 303,726
Amortisation charged to profit (303,726) (330,143)
Deferred outwards reinsurance expense at the end of the financial year 394,206 __303.726
NOTE 11. UNEARNED PREMIUM LIABILITY
PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
$000 $000
A. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Unearned premium liability at the beginning of the financial year 709,754 687,000
Deferral of premiums on contracts written 692,028 709,754
Earning of premiums written in previous financial years (709,754) (687,000)
Unearned premium liability at the end of the financial year 692,028 709,754 -

B. LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

The liability adequacy test has been conducted using the central estimate of the premium liabilities, together with an appropriate
margin for uncertainty. The test is based on prospective information and so is heavily dependent on assumptions and judgements.

The liability adequacy test at reporting date resulted in a surplus for the Company for which additional information is provided in the

table helow (2014 - surplus).

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

$000 $000

Net central estimate of present value of expected future cash flows from future claims 274,293 338,171
Risk margin of the present value of expected future cash flows 7.431 9,200
281,724 347 371

Risk margin percentage 2.7% 2.7%
Probability of adequacy 60.0% 60.0%

The probability of adequacy applied for the purposes of the liability adequacy test differs from the probability of adequacy determined
for the outstanding claims liability. The reason for this difference is that the former is in effect an impairment test used only to test the
sufficiency of net premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measurement accounting policy used in determining the carrying value of

the outstanding claims liability carried on the balance sheet.
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NOTE 12. INVESTMENTS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. COMPOSITION
I. Interest bearing investments
Cash and short term money held in investment 71,293 76,205 71,293 76,205
Government and semi-government bonds 648,454 860,404 648,454 860,404
Corporate bonds and notes 946,917 1,089,376 946,917 1,089,376
Subordinated securities 32,050 178,487 32,050 178,487
1,698,714 2204472 1,698,714 2204472
Il. Equity investments
Listed - = 1,728 1,399
Unlisted 471,835 - 471,835 -
471,835 - 473,563 1,399
2,170,549 2204472 2172277 2,205,871

B. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

The table below separates the total investments balance based on a hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in the
determination of fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

I. Level 1 quoted prices

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liahilities are used.

Il. Level 2 other ohservable inputs

Valued using inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assets or liahilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but
are observable for the asset or liahility, for example interest rate yield curves ohservable at commonly quoted intervals.

Ill. Level 3 unobservable inputs

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs) are used.

Where the determination of fair value for an instrument involves inputs from more than one category, the level within which the
instrument is categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement in its entirety.

CONSOLIDATED
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000

2015
Interest bearing investments 686,750 1,011,964 1,698,714
Equity investments 1,728 471,835 - 473,563
688,478 1,483,799 2,172,277

2014
Interest bearing investments 586,915 1,617,557 2,204,472
Equity investments 1,399 - 1,399
588,314 1,617,557 2,205,871

The Consolidated entity's policy is to recognise transfers intc and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTE 13. RECEIVABLES

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
COMPOSITION
I. Premium receivable
Premium receivable 439,890 474,778 439,890 474778
Provision for lapses (8,480) (10,739) (8,480) (10,739)
Premium receivable 431,410 464,039 431,410 464,039
Il. Trade and other receivables
Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims 64,088 29,454 64,088 29,454
Investment income receivable 12,195 17,395 12,4195 17,395
Investment transactions not yet settled at reporting date - 124 - 124
Other debtors 15,010 10,819 26,830 22,391
Trade and other receivables 91,293 57,792 103,113 69,364

522,703 521,831 534,523 533,403

Reinsurance and other recaveries on paid claims includes $15.1 million (2014 - $5.0 million) recoverable from IAG Re Singapore Pte
Limited and $21.7 million (2014 - $16.7 million) recoverable from 1AG Re Labuan (L) Berhad.

NOTE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED
Software
development Customer
expenditure relationships Total
$000 $000 $000
2015
A. COMPOSITION
Cost 71,800 5,980 77,780
Accumulated amortisation (58.318) (3,814) (62,132)
Balance at the end of the financial year —13.482 2166 __ 15648
B. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 14,155 2,601 16,756
Additions acquired and developed 6,340 - 6,340
Additions through business acquisition - 190 190
Amortisation® : (7,013) (625) (7,638)
Balance at the end of the financial year 13.482 2,166 15,648
2014
C. COMPOSITION
Cost 65,460 5,720 71,250
Accumulated amortisaticn (51,308) (3,189) (64,494)
Balance at the end of the financial year 14,1565 2,601 16.756
D. RECONCILIATION OF MIOVEMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 17,702 604 18,306
Additions acquired and developed 2,904 - 2,904
Additions through business acguisition - 2,540 2,540
Amortisation* (6,451) (543) (6,994)
Balance at the end of the financial year 14,155 2,601 ___16.756

* Amortisation of software development is included under other underwriting expenses and amortisation of customer relationships is included under fee based, corporate and
other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The only intangible asset of the parent is software development expenditure.

E. AMORTISATION RATES (% per annum) 33.33% 12.0-20%



F. EXPLANATORY NOTES FOR INTANGIBLE ASSETS
I. Software development expenditure
The software development expenditure asset comprises internally generated assets.

Il. Acquired intangible assets

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

This represents the amount paid to the vendor for the value of the customer relationships developed prior to acquisition. A fall in
renewal rates may lead to a reduction in the useful life of the asset and a commensurate acceleration of the amortisation.

G. IMPAIRMENT TESTING

For each category an impairment trigger review was conducted and where necessary the recoverable amount of particular assets
determined.

NOTE 15. GOODWILL

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. COMPOSITION
Goodwill 204,813 204,813 212,416 212,361
Accumulated impairment charges - - - =
Balance at the end of the financial year 204,813 204,813 212,416 212,361
B. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 204,813 204,813 212,361 210,830
Additional amounts arising from business acquisitions - - 55 1,531
Balance at the end of the financial year 204813 _ 204,813 __ 212416 __ 212361

The goodwill reported by the Company arises from the purchase of New Zealand Insurance Limitéd (NZI) in 2003. The cash generating
unit of NZI were integrated with the cash generating units that existed in the Company prior to integration.

The goodwill reported by the Consolidated entity represents the NZI goodwill noted above and the goodwill recognised by the subsidiary
Runacres and Associates Limited upon the acquisition of broking businesses.

C. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The impairment testing of goodwill involves the use of accounting estimates and assumptions. The recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit is determined on the basis of value in use calculations. The value in use is calculated using a discounted cash flow
methodology covering a ten year period with an appropriate terminal value at the end of year ten for each cash generating unit. The
carrying value of identified intangible assets is deducted from the value generated from the cash flow projections to arrive at a
recoverable value for goodwill which is then compared with the carrying value of goodwill.

There was no impairment charge recognised during the current or prior year.

Assumptions used

The following describes the key assumptions on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill. There is ho reasonably possible change in key assumptions that could cause the carrying value of goodwill to
exceed the recoverable amount. .

a. CASH FLOW FORECASTS
Cash flow forecasts are based on ten year business plans.

b. TERMINAL VALUE

Terminal value is calculated using a perpetuity growth formula hased on the cash flow forecast for year ten, terminal growth rate in
profit or premium and, where appropriate, terminal insurance margin. Terminal growth rates and insurance margins are based on past
performance and management's expectations for future performance in each segment. The terminal growth rate assumptions used in
the impairment assessment as at 30 June 2015 was 3.5% (2014 - 3.5%).

c. DISCOUNT RATE

Discount rates reflect a beta and equity risk premium appropriate to the Consolidated entity, risk adjusted where applicable. The pre-
tax discount rate used was 14.9% (2014 - 15.0%).
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NOTE 16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OWNERSHIP INTEREST DATE
2015 2014
% %
State Insurance Limited Non-operating 100.00 100.00 30 June
Direct Insurance Services Limited Non-operating 100.00 100.00 30 June
Runacres and Associates Limited Insurance Intermediary 100.00 100.00 30 June
IAG (NZ) Share Plan Nominee Limited Trustee of Staff Share Plan 100.00 100.00 30 June
The IAG New Zealand Limited Employee Share Plan Share Plan Trust 100.00 100.00 30 June
Runacres Premium Funding Limited Intermediary 100.00 100.00 30 June
NZI Staff Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited Investment Nominee 100.00 100.00 30 June
NOTE 17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
COMPOSITION
I. Trade creditors
Commissions payable 8,314 8,189 8,314 8,189
Levies payable 43,722 45,162 43,722 45,162
Other 45422 35,327 57,145 47,720
97,458 88,678 109,181 101,071
Il. Other payables
Other creditors and accruals 43,445 59,409 46,862 63,529
Investment creditors 408 - 408 -
441,011 148,087 156,451 164,600

Trade and other payables are unsecured and non interest-bearing. Amounts have not been discounted because the effect of the time

value of money is not material. The carrying amount of payables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of the liabilities

because of the short-term nature of the liahilities.

NOTE 18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

A. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROVISION
Annual leave 14,789 10,971 14,943 11,102
Cash based incentive arrangements 20,369 18,024 20,447 18,123
Defined benefit pension arrangement - unfunded 21432 2,278 2,432 2,278
37,290 31,273 37,522 31,503

The employee benefits provision includes $1.8 million (2014 - $1.9 million) which is expected to be settled after more than 12 months

from reporting date.

B. CASH BASED INCENTIVE ARRANGEMENTS
Short term incentive plan

The short term incentive plan continued in operation during the current reporting year. Eligible employees have the capacity to earn a

proportion of their base pay as a cash incentive annually. The incentive opportunity is set depending cn an employee's role and
responsibilities. The majority of employees are eligible for a 10% or 20% cash incentive. The incentive payments are determined
based on an assessment of individual performance and achievement of a range of business unit and individual goals.
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NOTE 19. SHARE BASED REMUNERATION

The provision of share based remuneration creates a link between shareholder value creation and rewarding employees. Share based
remuneration encourages employee share ownership, links employee reward to the performance of the Consolidated entity and assists
with retention of key personnel. This type of remuneration encourages employees to focus on creating shareholder value over the
longer term.

The obligations under share based payment arrangements are covered by the on market purchase of IAG ordinary shares which are
held in trust. The shares are purchased on or near grant date at the prevailing market price. The arrangements are managed using in-
house trusts. The trusts are administered by an external company.

The number of shares purchased to cover each allocation of shares or rights is determined by the trustee based on independent ‘
actuarial advice. The trusts allow for excess shares purchased in relation to one plan to be used to meet obligations of the other plans
at the trustee's discretion.

Share based remuneration is provided through a range of different plans each of which has different purposes and different rules.

A. SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTIVE SHARE PLANS
The senior management and executive share plan arrangements consist of two separate arrangements working together. These two
arrangements are the Deferred Award Rights Plan and the Executive Performance Rights Plan which are detailed helow,

l. Deferred Award Rights Plan
The Deferred Awards Rights Plan (DAR Plan) is the deferred portion of the short term incentive issued as rights over IAG ordinary
shares.

Key terms and conditions:
m  The rights are granted for nil consideration, are non transferable, and can be settled only with existing |IAG ordinary shares.
Holders do not receive dividends and do not have voting rights until the rights are exercised.

The vesting condition is not market related and requires the participant to continue in relevant employment.

Where the rights vest (the holder becomes entitled to exercise the right), the plan entitles participating employees to acquire one
IAG ordinary share for each right. The exercise price of all vested rights is a nominal value of $1 per tranche of rights exercised.

m  The rights vest after a maximum two year period as determined by the IAG Group Board subject to the participants continuing in
relevant employment for the full period. If there is a change of control of IAG, the Board has discretion to determine if and when
rights should vest.

m If the vesting condition is not met then the rights lapse. The rights also lapse where the holder chooses to forgo the rights, and all
rights expire seven years from grant date where they have not previously lapsed or been exercised.

Il. Executive Performance Rights Plan
The Executive Performance Rights Plan (EPR Plan) is the Group's long term incentive plan issued as rights over IAG ordinary shares.

Key terms and conditions:

B The rights are granted for nil considaration, are non transferable, and for Series 1 10 5 can be settled only with IAG ordinary
shares. From Series 6 onwards, the rights may be settled in cash or IAG ordinary shares, subject to Board discretion. Holders do
not receive dividends and do not have voting rights until the rights are exercised.

m  Where the rights vest (the holder becomes entitled to exercise the right), the EPR Plan entitles participating employess to acquire
either one IAG ordinary share or its equivalent cash value as determined by the Board for each right. There is no exercise price.

m  FEach allocation is split equally into two portions and is subject to different performance hurdles. The first vesting condition is not
market related and requires the participant to continue relevant employment. The second set of vesting conditions is as follows:
—  B0%is subject to a return on equity hurdle (ROE allecation); and
—  B50%is subject to a total shareholder return hurdle (TSR allocation).

If a participant ceases employment with IAG before the performance conditions are tested, their unvested rights will generally lapse.

®m  Underthe TSR allocation, IAG's TSR is assessed against the TSR of a peer group of entities. For allocations made prior to 30 June
2009, the peer group consists of entities in the S&P/ASX 100 Index and for allocations made after 30 June 2009, the peer group
consists of entities in the top 50 industrials within the S&P/ASX 100 Index. The performance hurdle is set with a tiered vesting
scale:

—  Maximum vesting of 100% if IAG's relative TSR is equal or larger than the 75th percentile of the peer group;
—  Minimum vesting of 0% if IAG's TSR is below the 50th percentile of the peer group.

m  The ROE hurdle compares IAG's performance with IAG's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), where the Board determines the
WACC. The tiered vesting scale is:

—  Maximum vesting of 100% if ROE is larger than 1.6 x WACC (1.8 x WACC for rights granted between 1 July 2008 to 30 June
2010);

—  Minimum vesting at 0% if ROE is below 1.2 x WACC (1.5 x WACC for rights granted between 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2010, 1.3
x WACC for rights granted before 30 June 2008).

m  Ifthere is a change of control of IAG, the Board has discretion to determine if and when rights should vest.
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B. EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS

The Company has estahlished an employee share plan to assist employees to become shareholders of IAG. The Plan operates within
the terms of a Trust Deed dated 24 July 2002. Shares subscribed under the Plan are held in Trust for a vesting period of three years
on behalf of the respective staff member. Under certain circumstances such as retirement, death or permanent disability, the vesting
period may be waived. Dividends are payable during the vesting period. Staff who leave the Group before completion of the vesting
period forfeit any rights to the shares. Such forfeited shares may then be reallocated as part of a future approved offer or disposed of
at the discretion of the Trustees. Dividends received on forfeited shares may, at the Trustees' discretion, be used to defray the costs of
administering the Plan. Shares held in the Trust have full voting rights and these rights may be exercised by the staff member on
whose behalf the shares are held.

2010 to 2015 IAG NZ Employee Share Awards:
In terms of each of these awards staff can subscribe for a $1,000 parcel of shares. Shares are purchased by way of salary sacrifice
and IAG NZ contributes 10% towards the cost of the share purchase. IAG shares taken up through the Plan do not incur any

brokerage. Participation in the awards is optional.

The Trustee of the Plan is IAG Share Plan Nominee (Pty) Limited. The Company has the power to appoint and remove the Trustees at
its discretion.

At balance date the Trust held the following Ordinary Shares in IAG:

PARENT AND

CONSQOLIDATED

2015 2014

Forfeited shares 54,548 42,930
Shares held on behalf of eligible staff 218,084 180,024
Total shares held —272,632 222054

The total number of shares held represents 0.011% (June 2014 - 0.009%) of the Ordinary Shares issued by IAG.

NOTE 20. CONTINGENCIES

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the balance sheet but are disclosed here where the possibility of settlement is less than
prohable but more than remote. Provisions are not required with respect to these matters as it is not probable that a future sacrifice
of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not reliably measurable. If settlement becomes probable, a provision is
recognised. The best estimate of the settlement amount is used in measuring a contingent liability for disclosure. The measurement
involves judgement. )

The Consolidated entity has no known material contingent liabilities as at the date of this report.

NOTE 21. COMMITMENTS

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014
$000 $000
I. Property

Due within 1 year 17,262 16,126
Due within 1 to 2 years 16,417 13,138
Due within 2 to 5 years 39,500 35,250
Due after 5 years 44,282 57,260

Il. Plant and equipment
Due within 1 year 1,891 2,295
Due within 1to 2 years 764 1,767
Due within 2 to 5 years 324 769

120,440 126,605

Certain property and motor vehicles are leased under non cancellable operating leases. Most leases are subject to annual reviews
with increases subject to a set percentage or based on either movements in consumer price indices or operating criteria. Where
appropriate, a right of renewal has been incorporated into the lease agreements at which time all terms and conditions may be
renegotiated. There are no options to purchase the relevant assets on expiry of the lease.
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NOTE 22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

At the end of the reporting period the Company had the following related party balances:

Closing Balance

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Related Party Description $000 $000
Runacres and Associates Limited Interest bearing loan* 737 750
Insurance Australia Limited Forward exchange contracts (75,528) 3,676
NRMA Information Services Pty Limited Technology costs recharged (6,581) (827)
Insurance Australia Limited Fee for services (3,248) (2,333)
IAG Asset Management Limited Investment management fees (3886) (358)
Direct Insurance Services Limited Current account with subsidiary company 12 12
CGU Insurance Limited Technology costs recharged - (153)
AMI Insurance Limited Fee for services 10,829 925
Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Co-insurance receivable 1.838 590
Insurance Australia Group Limited Interest Bearing Loan** 552,351 -
Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Management fee recharged 7,599 -
487.625 2,282

* Interest charged on the loan Is calculated by reference to the 80 day bank bill rate. The loan repayment date is 6 July 20186.
**|nterest received on the loan facility to Insurance Australia Group Limited is calculated by reference to the Australian Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin. The facility is
denominated in Australian dollars and is fully hedged back to New Zealand dollars by way of forward exchange contracts. The loan is guaranteed by National Australian Bank

and expires on 22 April 2016

The Consclidated entity had the same related party balances with the exception of Direct Insurance Services and Runacres, eliminated

on consolidation.

Reported within Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims (refer to note 9):

IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad

Reported within Receivables (refer to note 13):

IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad

Reported within Reinsurance premium payable:

IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad
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B. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Impact of transactions with related parties on the Company's Financial Statements was as follows:

Transaction Amount

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Related Party Transaction $000 $000

IAG Finance (NZ) Limited NZ Branch Fee for services 63 63

Insurance Australia Limited Forward exchange contracts 147,375 (152,998)
NRMA Information Services Pty Limited Technology costs recharged 12,577 9,368

Insurance Australia Limited Fee for services 22,481 12,993

1AG Asset Management Limited Investment management fees 4,671 4,551
First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Claims expenditure 6,178 6,060

First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Fee for services 447 384

Loyalty New Zealand Limited Issue of Fly Buys points 5,288 5776

IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Dividend paid 11,600 19,500

Runacres and Associates Limited Interest received (18) (10)
Runacres and Associates Limited Loan 737 750

IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Issue of ordinary shares (1,050,000) (100,000)
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance expense 335,629 333,793

IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance recoveries (874) (56,008)
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad Reinsurance recoveries (139,102) (602,923)
AMI Insurance Limited Fee for services (40,132) (32,175)
CGU Insurance Limited Technology costs recharged 13 1,036

Insurance Australia Group Limited Interest received (2,576) -

Runacres and Associates Limited Loan (750) -

Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Management Fees recharged (41,083) -

Insurance Australia Group Limited Loan 552,351

Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Co-Insurance (18,721)

Impact of transactions with related parties on the Consolidated entity's Financial Statements was as follows:

Transaction Amount

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

Related Party Transaction $000 $000
IAG Finance (NZ) Limited NZ Branch Fee for services 63 63
Insurance Australia Limited Forward exchange contracts 147,375 (152,998)
NRMA Information Services Pty Limited Technology costs recharged 12,577 9,368
Insurance Australia Limited Fee for services 22,181 12,993
IAG Asset Management Limited Investment management fees 4,671 4,551
First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Claims expenditure 6,178 6,060
First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Fee for services 447 384
Loyalty New Zealand Limited Issue of Fly Buys points 5,288 5,776
IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Dividend Paid 11,600 19,500
IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited Issue of ordinary shares (1,050,000) (100,000)
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance expense 335,629 333,793
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance recoveries (874) (56,008)
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad Reinsurance recoveries (139,102) (602,923)
AMI Insurance Limited Technology costs recharged (40,132) (32,175)
CGU Insurance Limited Technology costs recharged 13 1,036
Insurance Australia Group Limited Interest received (2,576) -
Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Management Fees recharged (41,083) -
Insurance Australia Group Limited Loan 552,351 -
Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited Co-Insurance (18,721) =

The foreign exchange movement on investments and the foreign exchange movement cn the related currency hedges have been offset

within investment income in Note 4.B.



C. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Details of compensation

Key management personnel (KMP) are those persons having autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Consolidated entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

The aggregate compensation of the KMP is set out below:

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2015 2014

$000 $000

Short term employee benefits 3,947 4,239
Post employment benefits 85 71
Other long term benefits 3 13
Share based payments 1,554 1,754
5,599 6,077

The compensation disclosed in the table above represents the KMP's estimated compensation received from the 1AG Group in relaticn
to their involvement in the activities with the Consclidated entity.

NOTE 23. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. CAPITAL

On 23 December 2014, 850,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each were issued to IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited on the same terms as
existing shares.

On 24 April 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each were issued to IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited on the same terms as existing
shares. :

At 30 June 2015, Share Capital comprised 2,799,830,000 ordinary shares of $1 each (2014 - 1,749,830,000).
All ordinary shares participate equally in both dividends and any surplus remaining on winding up the Company. All ordinary shares are
fully paid and have the right to one vote.

B. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF EQUITY RESERVE
The equity reserve is used to recognise the fair value at grant date of equity settled share based remuneration provided to employees
over the vesting period.

To satisfy the obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on market at or near grant

date of the relevant arrangement and held in trust. The purchase consideration of the shares purchased is amortised to the equity
reserve over the vesting period.

NOTE 24. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

A. COMPOSITION
Cash held for operational purposes 36,020 42 523 45,097 50,018
Cash and short term money held in investments 71,293 76,205 71,293 76,205
Cash and cash equivalents 107,313 118,728 116,390 126,223

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand and held with banks, deposits at call and short term money held in investment
readily convertible to cash within two working days, net of any bank overdraft. There are no cash balances held that are not available
for use in normal operations. The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents presented on the balance sheets is the same as
that used for the purposes of the cash flow statements as there are no bank overdrafts used which are repayable upon demand.

40 IAQ NEW ZEALAND LIMITED

@
A



B. SIGNIFICANT RISKS
The net carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date and is
equivalent to the fair value of the assets because of the negligible credit risk and frequent repricing.

The majority of the amounts bear variable rates of interest. A small portion of the amounts bear no interest.

PARENT CONSOQOLIDATED
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
C. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR TO NET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) for the year (594,815) 17,247 (592,431) 18,911
l. Non cash items
Depreciation of plant and equipment 9,330 9,081 9,591 9,231
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill 7,013 6,451 7,638 6,994
Net realised (gains) and losses on disposal of investments 15,531 (49,664) 15,531 (49,664)
Net unrealised (gains) and losses on revaluation of investments (27,157) 34,682 (27,141) 34,706
Other (33,819) 27 (33,627) 13
Il. Movement in operating assets and liabilities
DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN OPERATING ASSETS
Premium and other receivables 35,418 (28,176) 35,169 (31,624)
Prepayments, deferred levies and charges (83,975) 23,817 (83,978) 23,786
Deferred tax assets (238,844) 9,033 (238,844) 9,003
Reinsurance and other recoveries 219,472 65,626 219,472 65,626
Current tax asset - (27) - (27)
Other (18,947) 278 (18,643) 278
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN OPERATING LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 86,073 (26,917) 86,020 (23,147)
Provisions 6,017 1,301 6,017 1,349
Qutstanding claims liability 664 (181,115) 664 (181,115)
Unearned premium liability (17,726) 22,754 (17,726) 22,754
Other 6,542 1,802 6,542 1,802
Net cash flows from operating activities —(629,223) (93,800) _(625.746) __(91,124)

NOTE 25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The capital management strategy plays a central role in managing risk to create shareholder value whilst meeting the important
objective of providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders and lenders and satisfy regulators and stakeholders.

The target level of capitalisation is assessed by considering a number of factors, including:

m  protecting the interests of current and future policyholders;
m  the probability of falling below the prescribed regulatory capital amount;
m  other stakeholder perspectives, including rating agency capital models and associated ratings.

Internal policies, governance structures and regular reporting of capital are in place tc ensure deviations from target capitalisation will
result in senior management and the Board considering how any shortfall should he made good or any surplus utilised.

KPMG



Regulatory capital
IAG NZ is regulated by the RBNZ in terms of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). This is a relatively new
regulatory environment and a prime determinant of the amount and type of capital that is held.

The Act and associated Solvency Standards prescribe how the minimum solvency capital (MSC) required by the regulator and how the
actual solvency capital (ASC) held by the licensed insurer are calculated. The sclvency margin is determined by comparing the ASC
with the MSC, which are required to be reported to RBNZ half-yearly. As at 30 June 2015, the ASC, MSC and solvency margins held
were:

2015 ' IAG NZ
Non-Life Life

$m $m

ASC 907.2 0.1
MSC 321.9 0.0
Solvency margin 585.3 04
2014 IAG NZ
Non-Life Life

$m $m

ASC 612.2 0.9
MSC 578.0 0.1
Solvency margin 34.2 0.8

The policy or approach to managing capital has not changed during the period.
The non-Life solvency margin of $585.3 million includes the solvency margin licence condition prescribed by the RBNZ.

It is intended that the IAG NZ group will combine its three separately licenced entities [IAG New Zealand Limited; AMI Insurance
Limited; Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited] into a single licenced entity. A formal application to do this has been lodged with the
RBNZ.

B. CREDIT RATING

In terms of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010, the Company undergoes an annual claims paying ability rating. The rating
review is performed by Standard and Poor's Pty (Australia) Limited. As at the date of this report, the rating assigned to IAG NZ was
"AA- (2014 - "AA-"). The AA- rating represents 'very strong' claims paying ability.

NOTE 26. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of
a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Consolidated Entity, to affect significantly the operations of
the Consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Consolidated entity in future financial years.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholder of IAG New Zealand Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IAG New Zealand Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group™) on pages 8 to 42. The financial
statements comprise the balance sheets as at 30 June 2015, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, for the Company and Group.

Directors' responsibility for the Company and Group financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Company and
Group financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New
Zealand (being New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards) and
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Company and Group financial statements
that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Company and Group financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Company and
Group financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Company and Group financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company and Group’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company and Group's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as
well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Our firm has also provided other services to the Company and Group in relation to other
assurance services. Subject to certain restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also
deal with the Company and Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the Company and Group. These matters have not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Company and Group. The firm has no other relationship with,
or interest in, the Company and Group.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 8 to 42 comply with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company and Group as at 30 June 2015 and their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements which describe the significant
uncertainties that exist in measuring the gross Outstanding Claims Liabilities and associated
Reinsurance and Other Recoveries arising from the Canterbury earthquakes. Our opinion is not
qualified in respect of this matter.

KPmMe:

14 August 2015
Auckland
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IAG New Zealand Limited - Section 78 Appointed
Actuaries Report as at 30 June 2015

This report has been prepared in accordance with section 78 of the Insurance
Prudential Supervision Act 2010 (“Act”) and details the review of the actuarial
information, as defined in section 77(4), used in the preparation of IAG NZ Limited’s
(“IAG”) 30 June 2015 financial statements as required under section 77 of the Act
(“review”). It states the following:

a. The review was carried out by Christian Barrington, IAG’s Appointed Actuary.

b. The Appointed Actuary reviewed the actuarial information and financial
statements.

c. The review covers actuarial information in, or used in the preparation of, financial
statements. There was no limitation to the review of actuarial information carried
out by the Appointed Actuary.

d. The relationships (other than that of actuary) and interests that the actuary has in
IAG (or any of its subsidiaries) are as follows:
(1) An annual short term incentive payment is a portion of the Appointed
Actuary’s remuneration. This payment relies partly on the financial performance
of IAG.
(i) The Appointed Actuary holds an insurance policy with 1AG.

e. All the information and explanations required by the Appointed Actuary were
provided.

f. Inthe opinion of the Appointed Actuary and from an actuarial perspective:
(i) the actuarial information contained in the financial statements has been
appropriately included in those statements; and
(ii) the actuarial information used in the preparation of the financial statements
has been used appropriately.

g. Inthe opinion of the Appointed Actuary IAG is maintaining the solvency margin
that applies under a condition imposed under section 21 (2) (b) of the Act at 30
June 2015.

h. At 30 June 2015 IAG was not required to have a Statutory Fund in relation to its
life business. As such no opinion under section 78 (h) of the Act is required.
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IAG New Zealand Limited - Section 78 Appointed
Actuaries Report as at 30 June 2015

This report is not required to be prepared in accordance with professional standard 90:
Communication of Professional Advice of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. All
matters that are required under this standard are contained within the 30 June 2015
Financial Condition Report.

Signed

Lf

Christian Barrington

Appointed Actuary

IAG NZ Limited

Fellow of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries
Date 30 July 2015

Page | 2



